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          1  COMMITTEES ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND LAND USE

          2                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Good afternoon,

          3  ladies and gentlemen. My name is Thomas White, Jr.

          4  I'm Chairman of Economic Development Committee, and

          5  we're here with a joint meeting with the Land Use

          6  Committee with Chairperson Melinda Katz.

          7                 I have an opening statement, as well

          8  as the other Chair.

          9                 The Economic Development Committee is

         10  joined today by members of the Land Use Committee,

         11  who is Chairwoman Melinda Katz. I would like to

         12  thank everyone for coming this afternoon to hear

         13  more about and voice your concerns about the Mayor's

         14  proposal developing Willets Point.

         15                 We will hear from the Administration

         16  representatives from EDC, Queens Borough President

         17  Helen Marshall, along with a number of business and

         18  land owners from Willets Point that will be directly

         19  affected by the proposed development.

         20                 While we at the City Council are

         21  encouraged by the City's economic growth, we are

         22  equally concerned about the City's development not

         23  occur at the expense of every day New Yorkers and

         24  small business owners.

         25                 Today's hearing, which is a follow-up
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          2  from the hearing on June 13th, 2007, will provide an

          3  excellent opportunity to hear from all parties

          4  involved and affected by the Willets Point Plan.

          5                 The hearing is expected to raise a

          6  number of important questions that will need to be

          7  addressed going forward towards the anticipated

          8  public land auction use action.

          9                 Under the Willets Point Redevelopment

         10  Plan, a number of actions will be proposed,

         11  including an urban renewal and a zoning text

         12  amendment, create a special district.

         13                 These actions will be subject to the

         14  Uniform Land Use Review Procedure and will be

         15  submitted to the Community Board and Borough Board

         16  for their review and recommendations to the City

         17  Planning Commission for its review and approval and

         18  then to the City Council for final review.

         19                 After the ULURP procedure is

         20  completed, the plan is to issue a Request for

         21  Proposal to developers. The Request for Proposal

         22  should follow the Land Use control and design

         23  guidelines that are part of the Urban Renewal Plan

         24  and Special Project text.

         25                 This process differs from the usual
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          2  process in that the City will issue the Request for

          3  Proposal only after the ULURP procedure has been

          4  completed, as opposed to the prior ULURP process.

          5  This can be seen by some as an encroachment of the

          6  Council Land Use authority granted as a result of

          7  the 1989 Charter Revision. Again, I want to thank

          8  everyone for this participation this afternoon, and

          9  now I'll hand it over to Council Member Katz to make

         10  her opening statement.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Good afternoon,

         12  Chair White, and I want to thank you and the

         13  Economic Development Committee for doing a joint

         14  hearing. I think that we should introduce the

         15  members of the Committees that are here, if we can.

         16  From the right, I can't see his face, Hiram

         17  Monserrate, Council Member Hiram Monserrate, whose

         18  district this is in and who I will ask to make a

         19  very brief opening statement in a moment. Councilman

         20  Charles Barron, Councilman John Liu, Council Member

         21  Helen Sears, Council Member Leroy Comrie, Council

         22  Member Tony Avella, and we will be joined by other

         23  Council members as the hearing continues.

         24                 I am very happy to be here today

         25  again for the second hearing of Willets Point. It is

                                                            8

          1  COMMITTEES ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND LAND USE

          2  simply an oversight hearing in order to ask

          3  questions so that the Council can better understand

          4  whether or not -- can better understand the project

          5  as it moves forward and the testimony from all the

          6  folks that will actually be either building in the

          7  area, working in the area, folks that are definitely

          8  going to have an interest in Willets Point as it

          9  moves forward, we are anxious to hear from all of

         10  you, and we're anxious to hear from the City of New

         11  York.

         12                 This is a plan that envisions mixed

         13  use residential with market rate, with affordable

         14  housing, office retail space, parks, playgrounds,

         15  public schools and a convention center and a hotel.

         16  It is an area of Queens that is in definite need, I

         17  believe, of some sort of development.

         18                 There is questions as we move

         19  forward, though, on how the process occurs, how the

         20  process has occurred and as we move forward, how

         21  it's going to move forward in a fair and equitable

         22  manner.

         23                 Chair White already talked about some

         24  of the issues that I know we'll be dealing with

         25  today as well is the ULURP process, like Chair White
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          2  mentioned and whether or not the ULURP process

          3  should be first or the developer should be picked

          4  first, as we moved forward. The infrastructure of

          5  the area and how that is going to be dealt with, the

          6  eminent domain issue, which is a huge issue for the

          7  City Council, it is one that we have talked about

          8  for many years here and we look forward to hearing

          9  testimony on that as well.

         10                 And the jobs that are going to be

         11  there, union, not union, what's going to happen

         12  there, we look forward to answers from the Economic

         13  Development Corporation, and also the relocation of

         14  the businesses that have made an investment in that

         15  community for many, many years and stayed there,

         16  considering many things that were against them in

         17  the community.

         18                 So, I look forward to hearing

         19  testimony today.  So everybody knows and so that we

         20  are fair here, we will have to be out I think within

         21  two hours or so, so I just wanted to put that on the

         22  table for everybody here. Thank you.

         23                 We are joined by David Yassky,

         24  Council Member David Yassky, Councilwoman Jessica

         25  Lappin, and Councilwoman Maria del Carmen Arroyo.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Thank you

          3  very much, Madam Chair.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Council Member

          5  Monserrate, whose district this is in, would like to

          6  make an opening statement first.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Thank you.

          8  I want to thank both you and Chairman White for your

          9  diligence, and my colleagues in the Council,

         10  particularly those from that part of Queens, Tony

         11  Avella, and John Liu and Leroy and the Chair

         12  herself, who have expressed great interest in this

         13  project. I want to thank EDC also for being in

         14  constant communication with my office. I look

         15  forward to a spirited discussion with lots of

         16  questions as to how we proceed. And the only thing I

         17  will say in opening is that I think that we have a

         18  tremendous opportunity here to do something that

         19  will create a win/win for all the parties. Anything

         20  short of that is not something that we should be

         21  looking towards as a goal. And I have already

         22  expressed my grave concerns about invoking eminent

         23  domain on this part of Queens for many reasons, but

         24  I'm open to hearing more testimony from the EDC, and

         25  also look forward to hearing from many of the
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          2  business owners who have been really working uphill

          3  for many years, establishing vibrant businesses in

          4  an area that has some blight and I look forward to

          5  ameliorating that condition for them and to produce

          6  a win/win for our City.

          7                 Thank you very much.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Madam Chair, for

          9  the purposes of being able to move in the right

         10  direction, I think that it would be important for

         11  our colleagues, as well as the City, to understand

         12  that this is an institutional issue and not a

         13  specific issue related to who is for and who is

         14  against.

         15                 The history and the Charter revision

         16  section on Land Use states in 1989 that the Supreme

         17  Court ruled that the Board of Estimate also violated

         18  the one person one vote mandate.

         19                 In response, the new Charter

         20  abolished the Board of Estimate and provided for the

         21  redrawing of the City Council district lines to

         22  increase minority participation on the Council. It

         23  also increased the number of members from 35 to 51.

         24  The Council was then granted full power over the

         25  municipal budget, as well as authority over zoning

                                                            12

          1  COMMITTEES ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND LAND USE

          2  and Land Use and franchises.

          3                 Under the 1990 Charter revision, the

          4  Council acquired the power to review Land Use issues

          5  and approve zoning changes, housing and urban

          6  renewal plans, and community development plans, and

          7  the disposition of City-owned property.

          8                 This power gives the Council the most

          9  significant voice in the growth and development of

         10  the City.

         11                 City Council authority over Uniformed

         12  Land Use Procedure. City Charter, Section 8. City

         13  Planning. Subdivision 197-d, Council Review. The

         14  City Council Commission shall file with the City

         15  Council and with the affected Borough President a

         16  copy of the decision to approve with modifications

         17  and all matters described in Subdivision A of

         18  Section 197.

         19                 2. Plans. Pursuant to Section 197-A

         20  and three changes in the text of the zoning

         21  resolution pursuant to Sections 200 and 201. Any

         22  such filing of a decision pursuant to Section 197-C

         23  shall be completed prior to the expiration of a

         24  60-day period for action by the Commission. Any such

         25  filing with the Council shall include copies of all
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          2  written recommendations of community boards, borough

          3  boards and borough presidents with respect to the

          4  decision being filed.

          5                 B. The following decisions filed with

          6  the Council pursuant to subdivision A of this

          7  section shall be subject to review and action by the

          8  City Council.

          9                 That's the statement for the record,

         10  Madam Chair.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: President Lieber,

         12  would you like to make a statement on behalf of EDC?

         13                 MR. LIEBER: I'm prepared to make a

         14  statement or go through a presentation that we have

         15  prepared. I think you have copies that have also

         16  been distributed as well. I would first of all like

         17  to acknowledge Chairwoman Katz the same way I'm very

         18  excited to be here for my second meeting on the

         19  Willets Point Redevelopment Project, and I want to

         20  thank you and Chairman White and the other

         21  distinguished City Council members for the

         22  opportunity to give you an update of where we are in

         23  this project to answer as many questions as we can

         24  about the project, the process and the time line

         25  going forward.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: If I can just ask

          3  you, as you go through the presentation, just

          4  because of time elements, everything that you spoke

          5  about at the first hearing, if we could maybe move

          6  past that and maybe talk about where we are now from

          7  the first hearing to now, and any updates on that.

          8  Not that you can't go through the slides, if that's

          9  helpful to you, but we've been through the project

         10  and you gave a very thorough presentation last time

         11  as well, so I thank you for that.

         12                 MR. LIEBER: I would assume I remember

         13  exactly what I said the first time, but I'll try --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Any change in the

         15  last month you didn't say. Thank you.

         16                 MR. LIEBER: I'll try and do that.

         17                 Let me try and go through this, and

         18  I'll move quickly so that we leave plenty of time

         19  for questions. But I think part of it is important

         20  to set the framework, as well, as we go through

         21  this, and I just want to first of all introduce a

         22  couple of my colleagues.

         23                 To my far left in the brown is Balmi

         24  Kim (phonetic), who is responsible for our MWBE

         25  effort. To my next left, also in brown, is Asimi
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          2  Yonsfeld (phonetic), who is in our development

          3  group, and is the day-to-day person responsible for

          4  the Willets Point Project. And to the right, is not

          5  in brown, is Tom McKnight, who is the Senior Vice

          6  President in our development group, who has overall

          7  responsibility for this project.

          8                 And, again, what I wanted to try and

          9  do here today is -- Asimi, you will hit the slides

         10  as we go -- we know where Willets Point is located,

         11  this is, we think, a particularly exciting project,

         12  given the activity that's taking place in the

         13  communities which surround Willets Point and the

         14  siting of this particular development itself.

         15                 And, so, what we want to update you

         16  about today is our business relocation efforts, the

         17  Workforce Assistance Program, where we are with our

         18  MWBE Task Force. Asimi will discuss a little bit

         19  about site planning project, or process -- progress,

         20  excuse me. Public benefits, and then renew some of

         21  the time line of what we're trying to do.

         22                 I think what we have made I think

         23  particularly good progress on, and I know there are

         24  two sides to every story here, but the communication

         25  that we have sought to engage in with the community,
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          2  the Task Force Advisory Committee, but also with the

          3  existing land owners, particularly what I'll call

          4  the big ten or the big 11 that we've spent a lot of

          5  time with, because for us this is critically

          6  important, as you identified that this process be

          7  done in a way that is fair and equitable and we are

          8  very much committed to doing that. So, we'll go

          9  through that and also talk about where we are in the

         10  environmental review, site investigations and the

         11  master plan design.

         12                 I do think that while this is

         13  somewhat repetitive, it is important, because I want

         14  to make sure everybody in the room and the City

         15  Council members in particular understand that we

         16  understand who is involved here is a part of the

         17  Willets Point community here. And we've broken this

         18  up into four different boxes that you could

         19  subdivide the way that you want to, but what we'll

         20  call first and foremost the owner occupants, these

         21  are the land owners that also own businesses here in

         22  Willets Point, and represent approximately 50

         23  percent of the land. You know, they own the land,

         24  they own the businesses, they run the businesses

         25  here, and in many, many cases these are very, very
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          2  important, really constituents of the City, because

          3  they employ people, they provide good, well-paying

          4  jobs, and they also perform vital services for the

          5  City. And, again, not that we treat anyone any

          6  differently, really, but we want to make sure that

          7  all are treated fair and equitably, and we have

          8  spent a lot of our time today with the owner

          9  occupants, as we identify here.

         10                 Another subgroup of this would be the

         11  landlords. There are 54 landlords who lease space,

         12  who don't occupy it but lease it to third parties

         13  that represent the other 50 percent of the land. So,

         14  these are the existing land owners, if you will. But

         15  we also have another constituent that we need to be

         16  mindful of and that are some of the businesses. The

         17  tenants, the 250 more or so businesses that are

         18  primarily the auto-related businesses but they also

         19  employ, employ people and our estimate is somewhere

         20  approximately 1,300 workers currently work at

         21  Willets Point. So, all four of these groups are very

         22  important to us in terms of how we address the issue

         23  of the redevelopment of Willets Point and we'll talk

         24  a little bit more about the relocation and workforce

         25  initiatives that are underway here.
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          2                 I'm going to start with the owner

          3  occupants and while I would say that we perhaps

          4  started a little slowly, in terms of engaging with

          5  the owner occupants, we have made a significant

          6  effort, certainly since April, to meet frequently

          7  and regularly as much as we can with these

          8  businesses, first of all, to understand what it is

          9  their -- what are their specific needs of their

         10  businesses, what are the specific attributes of the

         11  locations that they currently occupy, and as they

         12  look around, if there are other sites that are

         13  appropriate for the use, what they are, where they

         14  may be located and how we can work with them to

         15  identify those targets, those sites, and work to

         16  develop a relocation again.

         17                 So, we've met, as I've mentioned,

         18  collectively with all of these businesses. We've

         19  spent a lot of time with them individually. We have

         20  toured not only the existing site at Willets Point

         21  and the businesses that are there, but also toured

         22  with many of the owner occupants other alternative

         23  sites that we believe may be suitable for relocation

         24  demands for their businesses.

         25                 These are sites that are either City
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          2  owned, City controlled, City influenced, but also

          3  importantly I think here is kind of our commitment

          4  to what we're doing is, we are also reaching out to

          5  the private market and trying to identify

          6  alternative sites that are appropriately zoned and

          7  appropriately sized and appropriately located to

          8  meet the needs of these owner occupants, their

          9  businesses today, and also importantly the needs of

         10  their businesses, as we go forward.

         11                 We have engaged outside

         12  professionals, third parties, including Cushman and

         13  Wakefield, to work with us to do an assessment of

         14  the existing Willets Point properties, as well as to

         15  identify other sites in the -- again, as I

         16  mentioned, private market sites which may be

         17  available for relocation opportunities.

         18                 So, I think we, as I've mentioned,

         19  we've had lots of discussions, we look forward to

         20  having more discussions. We absolutely recognize

         21  that the first choice of many of these existing

         22  owner occupants would be to stay where they are and

         23  have everything be wonderful. And so there is

         24  certainly a bias to that and we fully understand

         25  that.
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          2                 We are, again, trying to address a

          3  lot of different needs here and have been very

          4  aggressive, we believe, in trying to reach out to

          5  these owner occupants, and identify these sites and

          6  conduct the appropriate level of tours so that we

          7  can get a better sense about their business and what

          8  may fit their needs.

          9                 We have also, and, again, in terms of

         10  dealing with sites that the City owns or influences,

         11  we can stop the process on any sales of those assets

         12  and so we can address the needs of these owner

         13  occupants, but we don't have the ability to tell the

         14  private market, which may be offering sites what

         15  they can or can't do with properties that they own

         16  that may be suitable, may not be suitable for the

         17  Willets Point land owner. So, we have also received

         18  approval from the EDC Board to purchase industrial

         19  properties that may -- again, may be suitable for

         20  the relocation needs of these land owners.

         21                 So, we are, again I want to

         22  emphasize, we are doing everything that we can to

         23  try and reach out and establish the dialogue around

         24  the sites that we own but also around other

         25  prospective sites, which may exist in the market, so
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          2  we can meet the specific needs of these owner

          3  occupiers. It's very important for us that we do

          4  this in a way that is a negotiated process and one

          5  that is fair and one that is equitable to all the

          6  participants.

          7                 So, we would like to have made more

          8  progress than we have, but we do think we have made

          9  good progress to where we are today and we are

         10  actually picking up some momentum. So, that's all

         11  well underway.

         12                 One other point I do want to make,

         13  just reference to make sure it's in here, but as

         14  I've mentioned, we've not only received the

         15  authorization from the EDC Board to look at

         16  acquiring appropriate industrial sites, we actually

         17  have reached agreement with some private sector

         18  owners where we would acquire these sites. So, we

         19  want to increase the inventory of available

         20  industrial sites which may or may not meet the needs

         21  of Willets Point tenants, so we're being as

         22  proactive as we possibly can, including going out

         23  and acquiring these on our own so that we can

         24  increase the breath of alternatives we can provide

         25  as suitable alternatives here.
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          2                 So, again, it's not that we're laying

          3  back and waiting. We're going out there, we've

          4  looked at these sites, we've talked to the land

          5  owners about prospective sites, we have identified

          6  sites that are of interest to a number of different

          7  existing land owners and we're being proactive about

          8  this in going out and trying to tie up these sites

          9  ourselves, so we don't make sure that we lost that

         10  as a potential relocation opportunity.

         11                 The next group that I talked about

         12  were the tenants and the landlords. We have to be

         13  relatively careful about how proactive we are in

         14  terms of addressing communications between the

         15  tenants, which exists on these land -- that the

         16  landlords that have a contractual relationship with

         17  landlords, so we want to be pretty careful about

         18  exactly what we say, but we have released a targeted

         19  RFP for a communications consultant that can provide

         20  general information to the existing tenants in a way

         21  that keeps them up to speed in terms of what the

         22  state of the process is as we work our way through

         23  the ULURP process.

         24                 As I mentioned, the landlords own

         25  approximately the other 50 percent that the owner
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          2  occupants don't own, a scoping notice was sent out

          3  to all land owners in March, and we have been

          4  receiving a number of calls to the hot line that we

          5  have established to address questions in in-coming

          6  inquiries from them.

          7                 So, again, we have received a number

          8  of inquiries, so we'll be meeting with the land

          9  owners to discuss the project and, again, want to

         10  look at a way to treat them that is fair and

         11  equitable here, as well.

         12                 Again, one of the points I want to

         13  stress is that we do have every desire to be as open

         14  and transparent about this as we possibly can. We

         15  reach out as much as we can. We try not to be too

         16  annoying and too pesky about that as we go. If for

         17  some reason any existing landlords or owner

         18  occupants that are out there, want to talk, want to

         19  hear more from us, we are more than eager to do so,

         20  and I personally am happy to talk to each and every

         21  one of them. I'm happy to give my phone number at

         22  the office if anyone wants to call me or send me an

         23  e-mail, because we want to be very clear about this,

         24  and we want to be very open about this so we can

         25  keep things on the right time line and try and reach
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          2  a negotiated settlement that's fair to everybody.

          3                 Next part of the update is around

          4  workforce assistance, and I think we, along with

          5  small business services, have selected LaGuardia

          6  Community College to administer our workforce

          7  assistance program, who just released this I believe

          8  today, or this was just made public today,

          9  selections made this week, thank you. And again, we

         10  think this is a particularly good choice to address

         11  the needs of both the workers and the businesses in

         12  the key industries in this area here. The Workforce

         13  Assistance Program will include job training,

         14  education, and job placement opportunities.  And the

         15  LaGuardia proposal has several advantages, including

         16  strong ties to the local community organizations,

         17  industries and the public agencies involved, and

         18  we're working with them to create an incentive

         19  program which will encourage enrollment in this

         20  program.

         21                 MWBE and labor force participation, I

         22  think Borough President Marshall will talk a little

         23  bit more about this. She is here. But we have

         24  worked, working in conjunction with the advisory

         25  committee here and the task force. Kickoff was in
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          2  October, meeting with the elected officials,

          3  community boards, local unions, local minority and

          4  woman-owned business representatives, to try and

          5  work with the Task Force to develop realistic goals

          6  about contracting and local labor force

          7  participation, as well as trying to establish a

          8  mechanism which we can monitor the progress as we go

          9  through with the developers in meeting these goals.

         10                 With two subcommittees, the

         11  contracting and workforce development to look for

         12  ways that we can build programs to build the

         13  businesses, and make sure that these MWBE firms are

         14  prepared to take on the opportunities that have

         15  become available.

         16                 The draft MWBE and local labor force

         17  participation plan will be prepared for ULURP in

         18  February of 2008. Moving on to the site planning,

         19  we're looking at both off-site as well as on-site

         20  conditions. We're continuing to work with the

         21  agencies and our consultants to figure out the best

         22  way to connect this district to both sanitary and

         23  stormwater sewer systems, and determine what other

         24  off-site improvements need to be allowed to provide

         25  for the new capacity.
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          2                 On-site improvements include the

          3  geo-technical investigation. We've completed that

          4  the beginning of November, and the number of samples

          5  have been taken which will determine specific needs

          6  for the infrastructure, the pilings underpinning the

          7  buildings, et cetera, that addresses the issue of

          8  groundwater, which is very close to the surface. You

          9  know, the former conditions as an ash dump and the

         10  settling issues that result from that. And we think

         11  that, not surprising, it will be very similar to

         12  some of the things we've seen in other parts of

         13  Northeast Queens where we've acquired pilings of

         14  somewhere between 80 and 150 feet in the ground to

         15  be able to support this kind of infrastructure.

         16                 So all of these different

         17  investigations help us estimate what the costs are

         18  going to be as we look at this.

         19                 Let's talk a little bit about the

         20  environmental conditions. Again, we mentioned that

         21  from a historical perspective this has been an area

         22  that is, you know, known as the "iron triangle," has

         23  not been well served, well remediated or well

         24  protected. It started as a historical coal ash dump.

         25  There has been widespread contamination, including
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          2  open petroleum spills. One of the facts of this site

          3  is we are on a high water table, so any kind of

          4  flood that comes in has the effect of spreading

          5  contamination throughout the site. Within the

          6  100-year flood plain there are no sewers, and as

          7  I've seen firsthand myself, and heard reported many

          8  different times, there is a lot of illegal dumping

          9  which takes place here.

         10                 We have done a lot of work on the

         11  remediation and particularly around the areas that

         12  we have access to, we have gotten a lot of

         13  additional and increased cooperation from some of

         14  the owner occupants as well, in terms of trying to

         15  assess the situation where it exists here today.

         16                 What we have seen through the reports

         17  and conversations with the DEC, indications that the

         18  clean-up activity, which has taken place here that

         19  many of the owner occupants have done, have been

         20  perhaps appropriate for their specific site, but

         21  have largely been what we'll call superficial

         22  remediation efforts, and meaning that they've really

         23  only addressed contamination at the surface, and

         24  have not really gone into any of the remediation

         25  which may take plus subsurface in the soils around
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          2  perspective groundwater contamination.

          3                 Again, we haven't been granted access

          4  on the private sites, but our investigations give us

          5  a pretty good sense that there is a significant

          6  amount of subsurface and groundwater conditions in

          7  contamination which remains and needs to be

          8  addressed as the overall remediation effort.

          9                 So, you know, we've heard and we've

         10  talked about the idea of doing remediation in blocks

         11  and doing it in part, not doing all 62 acres as one

         12  area, leaving people in place as we remediate

         13  different parts of it. We just really don't think

         14  that's a real practical way to address the specific

         15  environmental needs of this site.

         16                 You know, one of the great problems

         17  around this kind of a project is making

         18  improvements, and address it on a more holistic

         19  approach. Given the fact that we're in the 100-year

         20  flood plain, that we've got significant

         21  contamination, and poor soil conditions. We really

         22  need to address the site in its totality, not in

         23  pieces.

         24                 And we're not going to be just taking

         25  top soil or fill and dumping it on contaminated
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          2  soil. Part of our plan here would be that we would

          3  take out the hot -- search and identify hot spots,

          4  remove the hot spots, and provide the critical

          5  engineering controls such as vapor barriers, and

          6  make sure that we can provide a monitoring system

          7  that's incorporated in this, so that we can then

          8  apply the appropriate level of top soil and cap and

          9  surcharging and other things to ensure that the

         10  remediation is successful initially and well into

         11  the future here.

         12                 So, when we go to the RFP process,

         13  after ULURP with the developer selection process,

         14  it's important that we build an on-site

         15  infrastructure network that really does provide that

         16  Willets Point will not be in the flood plain. We

         17  plan on raising the service level here four to five

         18  feet, and we need to go through and create a sewer,

         19  a water and a road network that is structurally

         20  stable and is protected from the poor soil

         21  conditions so that it maintains and sustains itself

         22  as we go forward.

         23                 You know, when you think about the

         24  scope of the investment required here, it is a

         25  transformation exercise on all 62 acres, and it is
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          2  something that has got to be done and it can't be

          3  done in a piecemeal fashion, and the piecemeal, you

          4  know, is contemplated in some discussions or in the

          5  past, is just not a plan that's really going to

          6  work.

          7                 And the other part of it is we want

          8  to look for ways that the City can incorporate the

          9  green environment, a more sustainable environment

         10  from the ground up. So, as part of the PlaNYC

         11  effort, we have accepted a LEED pilot project status

         12  earlier this year. LEED is the Leadership and Energy

         13  and Environmental Design for neighborhood

         14  developments, and, you know, again, it's a hallmark

         15  of this Administration to make the commitment to

         16  creating an environmentally responsible development

         17  site.

         18                 The AECOM Sustainability presented a

         19  preliminary recommendations on how the

         20  sustainability can be incorporated at Willets Point,

         21  and we're currently studying three different

         22  recommendations and detail around the stormwater

         23  management system, district energy, as well as for

         24  site planning.

         25                 It's important as we do this to get
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          2  the most realistic cost-feasibility analysis in how

          3  we can incorporate it at Willets Point to maximize

          4  the City investment and returns from that.

          5                 Again, the redevelopment scenario,

          6  what you see in the DEIS is the maximum use

          7  scenario, which encompasses the broad range of uses.

          8  It's really based on the work that we did as an

          9  outgrowth of the downtown Flushing development

         10  framework.

         11                 We have also done this based on the

         12  responses to the developer RFEIs and RFPs that we

         13  have conducted, and the EDC-led initiative to try to

         14  analyze what are smart development scenarios.

         15                 And, again, part of what we've done

         16  here through the RFEI and the RFP process is tried

         17  to confirm from the marketplace what they think is

         18  feasible. We've also tried to pick from the

         19  different proposals that we've received what are the

         20  things that we think are most appropriate for the

         21  site and utilize them so that we have the best of

         22  the best, and we can edge out those components that

         23  we don't think quite as interesting.

         24                 So, we continue to work with Urban

         25  Design Consultants to create an illustrative site
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          2  plan and how we can put these uses in places uses as

          3  we go forward.

          4                 And I think also one of the things

          5  that we've done with the RFEI and the RFP process is

          6  try and use this as a part of our overall planning

          7  effort, so that we'll use the responses from the

          8  private market to figure out what we think are the

          9  best uses here.

         10                 And we talked about that, over a

         11  million and a half square feet of retail, 5,500

         12  units of market and affordable housing, a new

         13  school, 700-room hotel, 400,000 feet of convention

         14  center, half a million square feet of office space,

         15  eight acres of open space, community center, et

         16  cetera.

         17                 The zoning and urban renewal plan, we

         18  continue to work very closely with our colleagues

         19  and HPD and housing and planning, DCP, to develop

         20  controls for the site. Understand the issue about

         21  certifying in the ULURP but not picking an RFP until

         22  we come out of that. We want to work with you, as

         23  well as with the different agencies to create a

         24  model that establishes what exactly is going to get

         25  built here and really produce a design approval
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          2  that's post the EDC selection process. There will be

          3  a special district where the urban design

          4  consultants working with EDC and DCP to establish

          5  minimum and maximum widths of the streets, based on

          6  uses, access on and off 125th -- excuse me, 126th

          7  Street, sizing of the retail blocks, gateways into

          8  the district, and this will all be incorporated at

          9  the special district text around open space minimum,

         10  bulk and setback guidelines, and sustainability.

         11                 Another part of this that came out of

         12  the feedback was the convention center. We've

         13  retained the consultant CSL to advise us on the

         14  feasibility of the convention center and the cost.

         15  Early analysis continues to recommend a mid-size

         16  facility, and we believe that the convention center

         17  can be a real economic driver for Queens and for New

         18  York City, but we have to make sure we can balance

         19  what the benefits are with this, as well as what the

         20  cost might be in the forms of any City subsidy.

         21                 So, we're working to develop the more

         22  specific information around the actual costs of what

         23  it will take to build and operate this facility.

         24                 We also know when the balance of the

         25  convention center, that will also drive the
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          2  appropriate size of a hotel, and what the breakout

          3  of meeting space of that hotel might be, as well.

          4                 Access and connections. One of our

          5  goals is to create connections between the district

          6  and the adjacent communities, and with the

          7  amenities. We're working with Parks and DOT to

          8  create bike and pedestrian connections to the

          9  surrounding neighborhoods and amenities, the

         10  Flushing Promenade, Flushing Meadows, Corona Park.

         11  We're continuing to work on improvements, the

         12  Roosevelt Avenue Bridge, the bike and pedestrian

         13  walkways to Downtown Flushing, and continue to work

         14  with DOT on design and coordination efforts around

         15  this.

         16                 We also continue to explore the

         17  potential new pedestrian bridge to Flushing. I know

         18  this is a special interest to some of the Council

         19  members, and given the unique characteristics of

         20  this pedestrian bridge, we're including in EIS and

         21  alternative analysis of how the future pedestrian

         22  bridge connection will work. It's going to require a

         23  separate part of the public review. Part of it is

         24  just the logistics and the scale of this pedestrian

         25  bridge, and in terms of identifying the height, how
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          2  it would clear the existing Van Wyck Expressway, and

          3  then determine whether the appropriate landing

          4  points for this pedestrian bridge may be.

          5                 So, we want to make sure that we

          6  continue our work on this pedestrian bridge and how

          7  it can be incorporated as we move forward.

          8                 We also have new ramps under the Van

          9  Wyck. It's essential to this redevelopment to make

         10  sure we have the appropriate access and egress, in

         11  and out of Willets Point. And one of the unique

         12  characteristics is while great transportation and

         13  roadways around Willets Point, there isn't access to

         14  and from.

         15                 So, we're looking at two different

         16  possible alignments about how these ramps may

         17  actually access and egress the site.

         18                 Just to summarize here, we'll

         19  continue to conduct the in-depth financial analysis

         20  to make sure the Willets Point development is a

         21  successful investment for the City. We believe that

         22  Willets Point will generate in excess of $4 billion

         23  in economic benefits for New York City, will

         24  generate between five and six-thousand full-time

         25  jobs, and well over 20,000 construction jobs as
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          2  well.

          3                 Time line, we continue to prepare to

          4  certify a new ULURP in February. You can see the

          5  schedule. The DEIS was prepared in October. The

          6  workforce development RFP was released and the

          7  kick-off for MWBE task force took place in October.

          8  As I mentioned, we've selected workforce program

          9  manager and established MWBE committee meetings, a

         10  plan to certify in ULURP in February and release the

         11  recommendations of the MWBE task force at that time,

         12  as well as initiate the workforce development

         13  planning phase.

         14                 All with the goal with launching the

         15  workforce development program in September and

         16  concluding the ULURP process in September as well.

         17                 We have still got a lot of work to do

         18  here to be sure to certify in February, ongoing

         19  outreach to the owner occupant businesses on the

         20  relocation opportunities. Again, this is most

         21  critical to us, and want to increase the pace of the

         22  dialogue that's taking place here. As I mentioned,

         23  we're out acquiring sites that we think may be

         24  suitable for these owner occupants, and we've had

         25  some very good discussions with many of them about
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          2  what works and what doesn't work in trying to

          3  identify appropriate sites.

          4                 We have begun the communication

          5  around with the tenants and the landlords, the other

          6  50 percent of land owners, the consultants and

          7  agencies are continuing to work on the technical

          8  review of the draft EIS, and also working with our

          9  task force and advisory committee to communicate

         10  with the public through town hall and community

         11  board meetings.

         12                 So, in the upcoming months, the MWBE

         13  committees continue to meet to create contracting

         14  and workforce participation plans. Consultants begin

         15  the tenant communication and creation of the

         16  workforce development program, and it's our goal

         17  that we can begin the site clearance in late 2009.

         18                 We think that while it's important

         19  for us to, for lots of reasons, to shake this as a

         20  City Plan, this is a plan that has been developed

         21  with a lot of input and really from the local

         22  community itself, and we think the public benefits

         23  here include but aren't limited to certainly a

         24  significantly improved environment. We want to use

         25  this as a model for sustainable development going
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          2  forward, which includes open space, plazas,

          3  playgrounds, includes and addresses the issue of

          4  affordable housing, creates thousands and thousands

          5  of new jobs for New Yorkers, and enables us to

          6  reconnect Willets Point, both to Flushing and to

          7  Corona to link economic development amongst these

          8  different neighborhoods.

          9                 So, as I mentioned, I think we made a

         10  lot of progress since we met with you in June. There

         11  is still a lot of work to do, but we're very excited

         12  about the progress we're making, and we're very

         13  excited about the prospects of this project overall.

         14                 So, those are my prepared comments,

         15  and I know there are some additional questions, and

         16  I'd be happy to try and address some of these first

         17  or respond to any questions that, Madam Chair, you

         18  would like. How ever you would like to it. I will

         19  preanswer questions, or I'll take your questions,

         20  how ever you want me to do it.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I'm going to, in

         22  the interest of time, Chair White and myself are

         23  going to ask a few questions, but we're also going

         24  to keep it brief. And we're going to ask our

         25  Committee members to limit their questions really to
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          2  one or two questions, just in the interest of time.

          3  There's a lot of people here testifying.

          4                 I'm also going to ask you, Mr. Lieber

          5  -- Li-ber, or Lee-ber?

          6                 MR. LIEBER: Lee-ber.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you. Half the

          8  Council members up here have asked me that.

          9                 MR. LIEBER: I'll respond to anything.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: We're also going to

         11  ask you to keep your answers brief and succinct,

         12  okay?

         13                 MR. LIEBER: Yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Okay.

         15                 Chair White, do you want to go first?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Yes. I would like

         17  to ask the question in relationship to, what are the

         18  intended Land Use controls in the Urban Renewal

         19  Plan?

         20                 MR. LIEBER: Do you want to take a

         21  shot at that one?

         22                 Be brief.

         23                 MR. McKNIGHT: Good afternoon. I'm Tom

         24  McKnight, EDC.

         25                 The urban renewal plan sets out
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          2  maximum developments for the different use

          3  categories within the plan, and it sets out an

          4  overall development maximum within the plan.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay, I'm just

          6  going to ask one more question.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Can I follow-up?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Just to follow-up

         10  on that, but I thank you, Mr. Chair.

         11                 When you say the Urban Renewal Plan

         12  requires a certain amount of development on a

         13  certain piece of property, so for each site on the

         14  property with the Urban Renewal Plan, will it have a

         15  specific use control, and a specific purpose and use

         16  on that property?

         17                 MR. McKNIGHT: The plan is a little

         18  unique in that it sets out the overall development

         19  square footages for the entire plan area, which is

         20  what we've been talking about today. It doesn't

         21  specify within that plan area where individual uses

         22  need to go.

         23                 Although, through the special

         24  district, it does to a certain extent set out where

         25  uses within the plan would need to go.
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          2                 The goal here is to provide

          3  predictability, which we understand from the

          4  Council, and for us is important. We also need to

          5  retain a certain amount of flexibility to allow that

          6  when we ultimately go to development, we have a plan

          7  that is rigid enough to be enforceable, but also

          8  isn't a straight jacket for future development.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Would the zoning on

         10  those individual pieces of property be special

         11  district zoning?

         12                 You're going to dictate it through

         13  the special zoning, special zoning district, or are

         14  you going to do it through zoning?

         15                 MR. McKNIGHT: There is a zoning

         16  special district proposed.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: So it would be

         18  through the special district?

         19                 MR. McKNIGHT: That's correct.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: It would not be

         21  through the Land Use process of the New York City

         22  Council?

         23                 MR. McKNIGHT: We look at the approval

         24  of the special district is the City Council's Land

         25  Use Review Process.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I understand. But

          3  my point is, what you'd like to do in the Urban

          4  Renewal Plan is to basically say where there is

          5  going to be a certain amount of square footage of

          6  residential, and a certain amount of commercial, and

          7  just do it for the whole area, as opposed to setting

          8  up individual uses on individual lots.

          9                 MR. McKNIGHT: That's correct.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Go ahead.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Do you view the

         12  deviation in the approval process in the RFP will be

         13  used after the ULURP process, as opposed to the

         14  ULURP process as an encroachment on the Council's

         15  Land Use authority granted as a result of the 1989

         16  Charter Revision?

         17                 MR. LIEBER: No.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: You don't view it

         19  that way?

         20                 MR. LIEBER: I don't view it that way.

         21  That's not what we're trying to do here.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Well, you're not

         23  trying to do it, but I'm not questioning your intent

         24  on trying to do it, but in terms of the Council's

         25  authority as it relates to Land Use and City-owned
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          2  land, as outlined in the City Charter of 1989, it

          3  would appear to me, it would appear to me that there

          4  is an encroachment. That's just my opinion.

          5                 MR. LIEBER: I respect your view.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay, thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Not to, you know,

          8  belabor an issue, what about design controls?

          9                 MR. McKNIGHT: The special district

         10  sets out specific controls, which Bob talked about a

         11  little bit in the presentation, but it will set out

         12  height limits for development, it will set out

         13  street locations, it will set out the kinds of uses

         14  that will be allowed on ground floor retail, active

         15  uses, et cetera. So, there will be a certain amount

         16  of design controls within the special district.

         17                 Once we get a little farther along,

         18  there will also be a set of controls that we can

         19  apply through our ultimate disposition to a

         20  developer, controlling more specific things that

         21  typically you wouldn't find in zoning.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Through the

         23  developer.

         24                 MR. LIEBER: I would just add one

         25  thing, is I think that what we're trying to do here
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          2  is to make sure that we can come up with a process

          3  that reflects the views of all the constituents,

          4  particularly City Council.

          5                 So, while this may be part of an

          6  urban renewal plan, where we go through ULURP,

          7  before we've selected a developer, I think we have a

          8  track record of working closely with the community,

          9  with the local electeds and others to come up with

         10  plans and impose the guidelines on these developers

         11  in such a way that does meet the needs of the local

         12  community, whether it be -- we've got a number of

         13  examples. But we understand your concern, and we are

         14  very open minded and want to work with you

         15  specifically to come up with those guidelines that

         16  meet your needs.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Well, just so it's

         18  clear, my issue in the last hearing and this one is

         19  clearly that if we do the ULURP process first, it

         20  takes the New York City Council out of the process

         21  as we move forward.

         22                 It historically is not done that way.

         23  Historically we do the RFP first, the developer is

         24  chosen, then you do the ULURP process, and the

         25  reason that the community and the Council and the
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          2  community boards are normally involved in the

          3  process, is because we have to vote on it.

          4                 And, so, what's happening now, and

          5  the fear that I have, is that as we move forward and

          6  we do the ULURP first, I'm not sure what mechanism

          7  will be in place to assure community involvement.

          8  And to assure that the project goes forward in a way

          9  that makes everyone satisfied.

         10                 And you know that we've talked about

         11  this, and it is I just think one of the key issues

         12  that we're going to have to deal with in months to

         13  come.

         14                 MR. LIEBER: We agree.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I'll be very brief.

         16  I know that we're trying to move ahead. Can you

         17  discuss the ULURP process, the eminent domain issue,

         18  and as we move forward the City's policy on the use

         19  of it?

         20                 MR. LIEBER: Well, I think, and I'll

         21  go back to what my boss said on May 1st when he

         22  announced this, is that -- when the Mayor announced

         23  this, is that we want to do this as a negotiated

         24  settlement. We don't want to do something that has

         25  one person keeping everyone else from enjoying the
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          2  benefits, but we are committed to trying to do this

          3  in a negotiated way, which is fair and equitable, to

          4  everybody. And we are committed to doing that, and

          5  making full efforts to do that.

          6                 As a part of the process, though, of

          7  remediating and reclaiming the blighted area here,

          8  we do need to go through an eminent domain

          9  proceeding after we've gone through this to clean

         10  the title. We don't want to have to resort to that

         11  at all, in terms of any takings of private property.

         12  We want this all to be negotiated and fair and

         13  equitable as we go through this.

         14                 That's also why it's important in the

         15  ULURP process here is that this needs to be a

         16  City-sponsored plan, as opposed to a private

         17  developer-sponsored plan. So, again, we are

         18  absolutely committed to doing everything we possibly

         19  can from the Administration and EDC's point of view

         20  to do this in a series of privately negotiated

         21  transactions, including going out and --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Just in case

         23  anybody is following what the Chairman is talking

         24  about, that is as a result of the Supreme Court

         25  decision, I think it's footnote six, regarding the
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          2  use of eminent domain, only for business purposes of

          3  the City and not for a private developer, which is

          4  really the reason that the Administration, in my

          5  opinion, I believe, would like to do the ULURP

          6  first.

          7                 The last question, quickly, you and I

          8  have not talked about this yet, because an article

          9  came out today regarding the unions and the use of

         10  union labor as projects move forward. You and I

         11  spoke about this the first time, the first hearing,

         12  but I was wondering whether the City had any further

         13  views on the issue?

         14                 MR. LIEBER: Well, I know this is an

         15  important issue, and when I talk to my colleagues

         16  here, I can just say that we are actively talking

         17  about how we can promote good-paying jobs throughout

         18  New York City. So, those conversations are underway.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: We'll follow-up on

         20  the details of that.

         21                 MR. LIEBER: As you wish.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I appreciate your

         23  time, Mr. Lieber. The Committee should know that Mr.

         24  Lieber has not put any time restraints on himself,

         25  so by virtue of just the Committee's time, so it's
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          2  not him, I want everybody to know that, we're trying

          3  to limit the questions.

          4                 And Tom, do you want to do it?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay, we want to

          6  limit the time and we ask the cooperation of our

          7  colleagues so that we can have some input into this

          8  issue.

          9                 The first questioner is Hiram.

         10  Council Member Monserrate.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Thank you.

         12                 Hiram is fine, Tom. Any time. I want

         13  to say thank you to both the chairs again, and I

         14  want to welcome some of my Queens colleagues, who I

         15  understand will be testifying. We are joined here

         16  today by Borough President Helen Marshall, and

         17  Senator Toby Stavisky, Assemblymember Nettie

         18  Mayersohn and the former Borough President Clair

         19  Shulman. Welcome back to City Hall.

         20                 Let me go right into a couple of

         21  issues. The only thing I want to say before I ask my

         22  question is that, I also -- I want to concur with

         23  Chair Member Katz with expressing her concerns. I

         24  think her concerns about the ULURP not happening

         25  prior to -- excuse me, happening prior to the
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          2  picking of a developer, those concerns are well

          3  rooted and I share her concerns, as I have already

          4  expressed to the EDC, to make that statement.

          5                 You said in your testimony, and

          6  correct me if I'm in any way mischaracterizing it,

          7  that you're projecting revenues in the range of $4

          8  billion as a result of this project; is that

          9  correct?

         10                 MR. LIEBER: Total economic benefits

         11  to the City we project to be well in excess of $4

         12  billion.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: What time

         14  frame is that projection?

         15                 MR. LIEBER: Thirty years.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: It's a

         17  30-year. What directly comes back to the City in the

         18  form of revenues? Do you have any predictions on

         19  that? What directly comes back to the City in the

         20  form of revenues; do you have any predictions on

         21  that?

         22                 MR. LIEBER: Well, there are lots of

         23  components of what those economic benefits are, but,

         24  you know, most directive that it's just going to be

         25  just purely taxes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Do you

          3  have any estimate on that?

          4                 MR. LIEBER: That's going to be well

          5  in excess of a billion dollars. The numbers I'm

          6  giving you are very generic.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Yes. No, I

          8  understand. I'm not looking for specifics, but if we

          9  can have a grasp on what you're looking at.

         10                 So, basically your testimony is that

         11  somewhere in the area of about a billion dollars,

         12  primarily from property tax over the 30-year period?

         13                 MR. LIEBER: In excess of that a

         14  billion dollars, yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: In excess

         16  of that.

         17                 MR. LIEBER: Yes.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Thank you.

         19                 I'm going to go right to two issues,

         20  basically two questions that I have. One is, the

         21  current property owners, you have outlined in your

         22  testimony and in prior conversations with my office

         23  that there have been several discussions and

         24  negotiations or early discussions with some of the

         25  property owners. I spoke to some of them yesterday,
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          2  and they expressed to me that they do not share that

          3  opinion. That, in fact, they're of the opinion that

          4  the City, or the EDC in particular, has not really

          5  presented to them real concrete proposals, or really

          6  engaged in good faith negotiations towards

          7  purchasing or relocation plans.

          8                 How would you respond to that?

          9                 MR. LIEBER: I would say I wouldn't be

         10  surprised that they would tell you that. I'd

         11  challenge any one of them to come up to me and tell

         12  me that to my face.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Okay. With

         14  respect to that, I'm sure perhaps before the end of

         15  the --

         16                 MR. LIEBER: I talked to all of them.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: I'm sure

         18  that there's probably a few of them --

         19                 MR. LIEBER: Let me also add that to

         20  the extent they don't think we're engaged, again, my

         21  number is 212-312-3511. Call me, because we are

         22  doing everything we can.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: I'm going

         24  to ask, I'm going to on the record state to the

         25  property owner and the business owners, if you feel
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          2  that the EDC is not speaking to you or negotiating,

          3  send them a letter and please cc me as a local

          4  Council member. We want to make sure that that's

          5  occurring.

          6                 And with respect to relocation, just

          7  as a question and as an aside, many of those

          8  businesses have been clustered together and they

          9  have worked off each other. They've been an economic

         10  engine for each other. There is a comparable space

         11  in College Point which used to be the airport which

         12  I understand is about 16 acres that are developable;

         13  is that correct?

         14                 MR. LIEBER: I'm not sure. I think the

         15  site is actually larger than that.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: The site I

         17  understand is at least twice as big, but a certain

         18  portion of it can't be developed because of wetlands

         19  issues.

         20                 MR. LIEBER: Right.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Right. So,

         22  has that been a site that has been considered at all

         23  to relocate at least some of those businesses since

         24  that's five minutes away from where they currently

         25  are?
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          2                 MR. LIEBER: I think the answer is

          3  yes, as we would consider any site that is proximate

          4  that is available for development.

          5                 Part of the issue with any of those

          6  kinds of sites is going to be what's appropriate for

          7  use there and then the other is going to be what is

          8  the cost of being able to deliver that site

          9  available to these businesses.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Right. But

         11  you would agree to the extent that some of those

         12  businesses, particularly the larger ones who that

         13  location fits their business mode, and they have

         14  established business there, that are moved to

         15  another location in short proximity, probably would

         16  not hamper their business, so that would probably be

         17  a good case scenario for many of them?

         18                 MR. LIEBER: We're trying to minimize

         19  the disruption to these businesses.

         20                 I'm very empathic. I've been in the

         21  private sector for 25 years and run businesses. You

         22  know, it's hard to run a business in these existing

         23  conditions. They don't know how they can make

         24  capital investments to grow. They've got this

         25  uncertainty that's been there for years and years
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          2  and years. So, we're very motivated to try and find

          3  appropriate sites where they could relocate and

          4  their businesses continue to grow and thrive as a

          5  part of that, because it's good for all of us.

          6                 So, I'm very open minded to anything

          7  we can do.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: And my

          9  final question is with respect to the issue of

         10  housing, we have spoken before about the need for

         11  affordable housing and what that actually means for

         12  a community, particularly when the median income in

         13  the Borough of Queens is somewhere in the low

         14  thirties, are there any projections as of today of

         15  what you're looking at with respect to numbers or

         16  percentages of affordable housing?

         17                 MR. LIEBER: We continue to look at

         18  that, but we haven't really refined the model.

         19  We've, you know, in reflections and conversations

         20  with you and others, understand the differing needs,

         21  depending on AMI and other parts of the affordable

         22  housing, and we're just trying to make sure we

         23  factor that all into the financial model.

         24                 We haven't set any ranges or

         25  guidelines yet.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Do you

          3  have any time frame as to when you might get to a

          4  range?

          5                 MR. LIEBER: I would think that would

          6  be something that we could address in more detail

          7  within the next two to three months.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Okay,

          9  thank you very much, Madam Chair.

         10                 MR. LIEBER: I would think that would

         11  be something we could address in more detail within

         12  the next two to three months.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Okay,

         14  thank you very much, Madam. Chair.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Thank you very

         16  much.

         17                 I would just like to call your

         18  attention to the fact that the history of the City

         19  Council Land Use Authority can be found in City

         20  Charter Section 8, City Planning, Section 197-C lays

         21  out the Uniformed Land Use Review Procedure, and

         22  Section 197-D, Council Review, gives City Council

         23  sole jurisdiction in deciding on actions containing

         24  within 197-C.

         25                 With that --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Council Member Eric

          3  Gioia.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Thank you,

          5  madam Chair.

          6                 Mr. Lieber, it's a pleasure to see

          7  you. Just to briefly build on Council Member White's

          8  point, you stated in your testimony that all

          9  constituencies you had worked with, and you included

         10  the City Council as that, I think Council Member

         11  White's point, and I agree with it, is the City

         12  Council is not a constituency but a co-equal branch

         13  of government and should be treated as such.

         14                 I wanted to discuss with you today,

         15  the City's use of eminent domain. Because I have to

         16  tell you, I'm actually troubled by it. Not just in

         17  this particular case, but I think there has been a

         18  movement nationwide where there has been eminent

         19  domain abuse.

         20                 I'm sure you're familiar with the

         21  Kilo v. New London Decision (phonetic)? I know we

         22  mentioned it, I wanted to make sure, okay. And

         23  you're familiar with Justice O'Connor's minority

         24  writing in that?

         25                 MR. LIEBER: I am not specifically,
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          2  no.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: All right.

          4  Well, let me say this, partly I think it's where I

          5  come from in that, you know, my folks own a piece of

          6  property in Woodside for about 100 years, and the

          7  idea of, they run a little flower shop in Roosevelt

          8  Avenue, and, frankly, it doesn't make a lot of

          9  money, it never has, and I think you could probably

         10  make a pretty strong argument, there are smart

         11  people in this room, that we could look at that

         12  property and say, you know what? I could do a lot

         13  with that property. I could do a lot more with my

         14  dad and my Uncle Mike are doing today. But the

         15  prospect of government of government coming along

         16  and looking at my dad and my Uncle Mike and saying,

         17  you know what? You guys don't know what you're

         18  doing, we can do a better job at that then you, so

         19  you're out of here.

         20                 It really isn't what our capitalist

         21  system is all about. It's not what America is about.

         22  And I think, and this is my question to you, it's my

         23  premise that if you respect property rights and you

         24  respect individual rights, you need to respect

         25  property rights for the little guy, as well as the
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          2  big shot. And, so, my question to you is, what is

          3  your view of when it is appropriate to use eminent

          4  domain, and what structural limitations do you

          5  believe government should place on it?

          6                 MS. LIEBER: Well, I've been asked to

          7  keep my responses short, what I would say is I

          8  understand your view and I agree with you. I think

          9  the issue that we're addressing here is the issue of

         10  a blighted area. And the issue is about, there's

         11  always going to be issues of owner's rights and land

         12  owner's rights, and this is an issue about a broader

         13  set and that's the kind of the community good as a

         14  part of this blighted area. Your parents and your

         15  family should have the right to do whatever they

         16  want to, make as much money or as little money as

         17  they want to operating their business, that's a

         18  sacrosanct right of this country, I agree with you.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: But here is the

         20  point, though. And that has been the idea of eminent

         21  domain, historically, right? Since the founding of

         22  the country, is that when there is a public use,

         23  government can come in and take the land. You want

         24  to build a dam, you want to build a railroad, and

         25  then slowly the concept is grown to see economic
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          2  benefit. But then you see the slippery slope here,

          3  right, because what you say is blighted is another

          4  person's business. And, so, the question becomes,

          5  where does government draw the line of we can do

          6  better than you?

          7                 MR. LIEBER: I don't feel prepared to

          8  answer that question. I think one of the issues that

          9  the existing land owners would also tell you is that

         10  it's blighted land, it's a question of what do you

         11  do with it.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Well, I guess

         13  what I'm trying to figure out is that as we try to

         14  strike the balance between individual rights, and

         15  property rights and public use and then economic

         16  benefits, what structure do we use? And if the

         17  structure is just, you know, we do it whenever we

         18  want, it's not good enough, and I understand if

         19  you're not prepared to answer it today, but what I'm

         20  suggesting is that for there to be a level of

         21  predictability, so that you don't sit there and

         22  worry.

         23                 You know, my folks flower shop is

         24  about ten yards away from the number 7 train. And so

         25  for them, we sit there and we worry one day someone
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          2  is going to say, we could have a little restaurant

          3  over here, the government would be great, and do we

          4  sit there and worry about that? No, we don't

          5  actually, frankly, it's been there 100 years, we

          6  don't think that someone would come along and do

          7  that. That is the slippery slope that I think we

          8  have to be careful about, and I think the way we do

          9  that is setting forth something structurally.

         10                 But, you know, that's not the only

         11  problem with eminent domain. There's another

         12  problem. That is the coercive nature of eminent

         13  domain. And you see, there is a way you get the

         14  land, right? It's the free market, it's you go and

         15  you make a deal and you say, how much do you want

         16  for it, we'll pay for it and you do that.

         17                 But eminent domain is the equivalent

         18  of walking into a negotiation and putting a gun on

         19  the table and saying, we're going to offer you this

         20  and if you don't take it, well, we're going to take

         21  the gun out.

         22                 And to me, that's my concern.

         23                 Don't you think that the prospect of

         24  eminent domain, raising it now, even raising it by

         25  saying we don't want to do this but we will if we
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          2  have to, don't you think that's inherently coercive

          3  and changes the terms of the bargain?

          4                 MR. LIEBER: I hope not.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Okay. Thank you

          6  for your time.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Ladies and

          8  gentlemen, I appreciate that everybody has a very

          9  important vestige in this and has a lot of the

         10  opinions on this and very passionate about their

         11  feelings, but I'm telling you right now, there's

         12  going to be testimony people are going to love and

         13  testimony people are going to hate. So, I'm going to

         14  ask that we keep our opinions to ourself right now,

         15  and enjoy the wonderful testimony that's in front of

         16  us.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: I would also like

         19  to recognize colleagues, Council Member James,

         20  Council Member Jackson, Council Member Gioia,

         21  Council Member Arroyo, and Council Member James

         22  Oddo.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Next is John Liu.

         24  Council Member John Liu.

         25                 Please let's try to keep it brief,
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          2  okay? Thanks.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: I didn't even

          4  start yet. But I'll do my best to keep it brief. As

          5  you know, President Lieber, I do share the same

          6  concerns about the application of eminent domain. I

          7  think the points that Councilman Gioia has made are

          8  absolutely on point here. It's about really the

          9  American way, and eminent domain does fly in the

         10  face of the American way.

         11                 But as a concept, for the idea of the

         12  public good, I support the use of eminent domain as

         13  a last resort. If you absolutely can't do anything

         14  else and it truly is determined in a thorough and

         15  public process, that it is for the public good, then

         16  you may have to invoke it.

         17                 There's two issues with regard to

         18  that, however, one is have the EDC and the City

         19  actually reached that point of last resort?

         20                 And the idea of using eminent domain

         21  is, it's not coming up in this hearing, it's not

         22  come up at the last hearing, in fact, it was thrown

         23  out there from the very beginning, and that I have

         24  an issue with.

         25                 Now, actually I appreciate your
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          2  challenge to anybody here who denies the fact that

          3  they've had a meeting with the EDC, to tell that to

          4  your face. I don't think we want to get to that, but

          5  I think it would be helpful for me and I believe for

          6  my colleagues here if you could give us a record of

          7  the meetings that the EDC has held with the various

          8  property owners.

          9                 You don't have to disclose the

         10  content exactly of those meetings, but I think it's

         11  fair for us to ask for a schedule, a complete

         12  schedule of the meetings that have been held between

         13  EDC and the private owners, and which officials of

         14  the EDC have taken part in those meetings.

         15                 MR. LIEBER: We would be pleased to do

         16  that. And, again, my comment was not as a challenge,

         17  but it was meant to say that, I have met with every

         18  one of the land owners on more than one occasion,

         19  and we are fully committed to try and engage in

         20  negotiations with them and happy to do so. And if

         21  they don't feel like they're getting the appropriate

         22  attention or response, I'd like to know that because

         23  I want to work to fix that.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: All right.

         25                 MR. LIEBER: And we'd be happy to get
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          2  you a list of all of the meetings and the

          3  participants and all of the correspondence which

          4  took place.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: So, can we get

          6  that on a timely basis?

          7                 MR. LIEBER: Would you like that as an

          8  update as we go forward? Or do you want a

          9  reconciliation of all that's to date? We'll do it

         10  any way you want to do it.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: I think you give

         12  it to us to date and if people feel like we need to

         13  get updates, we can request that.

         14                 But for now we can start with just a

         15  compilation of all of the meetings that have been

         16  held, and the dates and who from the EDC have

         17  attended those meetings.

         18                 MR. LIEBER: We would be happy to do

         19  that.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: The second issue

         21  I have here is that while the EDC and the President

         22  of the EDC, and this is really not a personal issue

         23  here, while the EDC and its head may sit here and

         24  say that eminent domain has to be an option here

         25  because it's a blighted area and it's for the public
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          2  good, I wonder if the use of eminent domain, or the

          3  potential application of eminent domain is

          4  consistent throughout the entire administration of

          5  this City.

          6                 The reason I ask that is because here

          7  in this area eminent domain was put out there as an

          8  option from the outset, and yet, in other areas

          9  nearby, where we have what I consider greater public

         10  goods, this Administration seems to be hesitant to

         11  invoke eminent domain.

         12                 Now, the big difference is that I see

         13  here we're talking about, you know, I don't say this

         14  to belittle anybody but these are small businesses

         15  and perhaps not as sophisticated and not as deep

         16  pocketed.

         17                 The areas where I have found a great

         18  deal of distance from this Administration that

         19  you're part of, when it comes to getting land to

         20  build a badly needed high school, the Administration

         21  is totally hesitant. They don't want to touch

         22  eminent domain. And the reason I feel they don't

         23  want to touch eminent domain, is because they would

         24  be invoking it against a very large player, one that

         25  has deep pockets and one that has a lot of lawyers.
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          2  I find that to be highly inconsistent with what our

          3  City should be engaged in.

          4                 So, this is, Madam Chair and Mr.

          5  Chair, this is not necessarily a question for Bob

          6  Lieber, but I think we need to examine at a higher

          7  level also this Administration's use of eminent

          8  domain, where in some places it seems to make sense

          9  for the public good, in other places there is

         10  clearly a public good, but they don't want to do it.

         11                 And, so, I would ask that we look

         12  into that. And finally --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Councilman, we need

         14  to move on.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: All right. Let me

         16  then just say that I echo the concerns of Madam

         17  Chairperson Katz, in terms of making sure that the

         18  construction jobs are going to be union. I feel

         19  comfortable that they will be. But also, all of the

         20  service jobs, the service jobs afterwards when the

         21  buildings are up, for example, all the high class

         22  buildings that are going to need to be maintained,

         23  the massive hotel that is going to be on that site,

         24  there are mechanisms that I think we can put in

         25  place now to ensure that those will be good quality,

                                                            67

          1  COMMITTEES ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND LAND USE

          2  high-paying jobs. And I think there are models in

          3  the City that you can follow, such as the models at

          4  the Javits Center, and other recent developments --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I will not, just so

          6  you understand, I won't say it again, all right? We

          7  really need to keep order. Because as many things

          8  that are good, you're going to hear bad things, too.

          9  So, I don't want to hear the opposite of those

         10  claps. Thanks.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you, Madam

         12  Chair.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I'm going to ask my

         14  colleagues once again, and I am very serious about

         15  this, we are running into serious time constraints

         16  to (a) if the question has been asked already and

         17  mentioned and talked about, please do not do it

         18  again. You can say I want to associate myself with

         19  the comments of my colleague, boom, and that's it.

         20                 But, second, also, please, I know

         21  everybody wants to make statements, and I understand

         22  that, we need to limit it to questions as well, so

         23  that we're the best use of everybody's time.

         24                 Council Member Hiram Monserrate.

         25                 Council Member Helen Sears.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you,

          3  Madam Chair. I will be very, very brief.

          4                 Actually, my comment and I will

          5  incorporate it into one question.

          6                 And, Commissioner Lieber, I know that

          7  you have been here a very brief time, and I have

          8  great respect for what you're doing, and for what

          9  you're doing and I certainly congratulate you on the

         10  efforts that you've done.

         11                 MR. LIEBER: Thank you.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: But I find it

         13  absolutely astounding, you said the land is blight,

         14  and what I find astounding and rather shameful, is

         15  that the City has allowed these businesses, the

         16  small business community, to exist in this blight

         17  for all these years and never lifted a finger to

         18  help them. I find that extraordinary.

         19                 Now you are looking at finding sites

         20  that are appropriate. So, my question is, how is the

         21  definition of appropriateness defined for your

         22  agency? Is it linked with what the merchant defines

         23  as appropriate, and all the businesses are very

         24  different? And what you may think is appropriate in

         25  your agency, for the relocation of the land?
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          2                 Because there are different

          3  businesses. There are some businesses that need

          4  permits, there are other businesses that have a

          5  very, very difficult time relocating, and the

          6  question is, what kind of assistance has been

          7  proposed to them? If they need permits, is there

          8  assistance from the City to help them obtain these

          9  permits?

         10                 Are the sites all over the City? How

         11  much is being helped to get the land suitable for

         12  the kind of businesses that they have?

         13                 Now, you're looking at a ULURP

         14  process in February, knowing how this City works,

         15  that has to be done with such speed in order to do

         16  that. And we have sat through many ULURP processes,

         17  and I know there is a clock that goes with it. So,

         18  you are moving that clock along very quickly, how is

         19  all of that done in accommodating the merchants, the

         20  businesses at the same time that would be suitable,

         21  appropriate, fair and equal compensation, on even

         22  the fact of allowing them to be there if their

         23  businesses would be allowed to stay there while

         24  you're doing this?

         25                 It's a lot, but it's all in one
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          2  question.

          3                 MR. LIEBER: I'll try and make a brief

          4  single answer.

          5                 Your points are all well taken. It is

          6  complicated. The businesses or the owner occupants

          7  all have different businesses and different needs.

          8  What I would say is in order for this to work it has

          9  to be a two-way process that is an engaged process

         10  between both sides and we are working to put our

         11  ideas out there. We're trying to be crystal clear

         12  that we're not limited in our thinking to just our

         13  own ideas. And if there are other sites that are

         14  more appropriate for these businesses than the ones

         15  that we have identified or that we're aware of, we

         16  want to know about them. And we will sit down and

         17  try to work out the appropriate timing,

         18  construction, design, et cetera, for each of these

         19  owner occupants.

         20                 The needs of these businesses are

         21  different. As you identify, the permitting is

         22  different. Some have greater variability in terms of

         23  some of the prospective locations that might be

         24  suitable for them. But they all have existing

         25  customers and existing employees that need to be
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          2  carefully considered when you look at some of these

          3  relocation alternatives.

          4                 So, we want to, again, as I say, we

          5  are very eager to engage in a dialogue which will

          6  identify these sites and find a way to try and come

          7  up with a fair and equitable way of addressing those

          8  needs and move expeditiously to do so.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: How successful

         10  have you been in locating sites that are

         11  appropriate?

         12                 MR. LIEBER: How successful are we in

         13  identifying sites that are appropriate?

         14                 Well, somewhat so far, you know,

         15  again, these needs are defined by the businesses,

         16  not by us. Part of this when we started was to sit

         17  down with the businesses, and try and not tell them

         18  what's available and what we're going to do, but to

         19  say why don't you tell us a little bit about your

         20  business and what the needs of your businesses are

         21  so that we can go through and identify sites which

         22  we think are appropriate is, you know, how important

         23  is highway access? How important is mass transit

         24  access? How important is rail served access? How

         25  important is water access? Where do your employees
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          2  live? Where do your customers come from? How do you

          3  transport your goods? All those kinds of things, you

          4  know, height, ceiling heights, et cetera, all things

          5  we're trying to understand so that we don't take the

          6  view of telling them what we're going to do, that we

          7  can listen to what it is that they want to do, and

          8  try and develop a plan that respects their needs and

          9  ends up in a solution that is a win/win solution.

         10                 And, so, we have made good progress

         11  so far. We have identified a lot of different sites,

         12  we have different levels of conversations around

         13  those sites. You know, we feel pretty good about

         14  some of the sites that have been identified by many

         15  of the businesses. As I mentioned, we're looking to

         16  make acquisitions ourselves, so that we can hold

         17  some of these sites so that we can negotiate, and

         18  we're eager to hear more, and informally and

         19  formally conversations with the land owners, I've

         20  said, look, if you don't like what we're doing,

         21  fine, but come to me with some ideas. We're happy to

         22  work this out.

         23                 So, we're very committed to this.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you,

                                                            73

          1  COMMITTEES ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND LAND USE

          2  Madam Chair.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Council Member

          4  Gerson.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you very

          6  much, Mr. Chair.

          7                 President Lieber, it's good to see

          8  you.

          9                 Let me ask, to what extent has EDC

         10  analyzed or determined what scope of subsidy, either

         11  direct funding subsidy or indirect tax benefit

         12  subsidy the City will need to provide to the plan or

         13  the project developer in order to assure its

         14  viability? What are the rough numbers we're talking

         15  about?

         16                 MR. LIEBER: Well, I would say that we

         17  are looking to the private market to largely fund

         18  all of the efforts for the redevelopment of this

         19  site. What we have told people in the RFEI and RFP

         20  process is that the City will be responsible for the

         21  off-site costs, and that the developer, the teams of

         22  developers would be responsible for all of the --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Off-site

         24  costs, for example? Define what you mean --

         25                 MR. LIEBER: Ramps, roads, bringing
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          2  sewer connections to the site, et cetera, and our

          3  estimate of that is it's somewhere in the -- you

          4  know, again, these numbers, you know, always change

          5  and these are very, very preliminary, but our

          6  estimate is that's somewhere in the 150 to 200

          7  million dollars, as we sit here today, in terms of

          8  estimates for off-site costs.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: So, you

         10  anticipate no direct tax break or funding subsidy to

         11  the developer?

         12                 MR. LIEBER: It's still very

         13  preliminary. We don't have our mixes yet around some

         14  of the housing and some of the other parts of that,

         15  so we haven't refined it from there, no.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: My other

         17  question, I heard you describe the relocation

         18  process with respect to the businesses as more or

         19  less an individualized process where you meet with

         20  each of the businesses and assess their particular

         21  needs.

         22                 Of course that's a critical need. Has

         23  the City, to what extent, though, have you looked to

         24  recreate the existing industrial cluster, or better

         25  yet, to create an improved physical version or
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          2  physically improved version of the existing

          3  industrial cluster that has served the economy of

          4  our City for all these years, either to create an

          5  industrial cluster on or near the Willets Point site

          6  or elsewhere in this City, what efforts has the City

          7  expanded to find in this type of clustering?

          8                 MR. LIEBER: Well, there are not a lot

          9  of sites out there where you have 62 acres of clean,

         10  ready to develop land in the City of New York.

         11  Fortunately or unfortunately.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Well, maybe it

         13  could be made more compact in different ways.

         14                 MR. LIEBER: Well, you know, what we

         15  have looked at are those areas around the City, you

         16  know, whether it be in the Bronx, whether it be at

         17  Hunts Point, whether it be in the Harlem Yards,

         18  whether it be in Brooklyn. You know, our search here

         19  primarily has been in those three boroughs, in

         20  Queens, in Brooklyn and in the Bronx. And it's

         21  largely because we respect the fact that these

         22  businesses are in Queens and any move away from that

         23  is more of an inconvenience. So, we're trying to the

         24  best extent we can identify sites that replicate the

         25  locational aspects of that which they have,
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          2  including transportation access in particular.

          3                 So, we have different areas where

          4  there are more or less sites. Some of the businesses

          5  are probably more, you know, it's more important for

          6  them to co-locate, or more advantageous anyway, I

          7  don't think it's more important, perhaps, but to

          8  locate, co-locate than it is for some of the other

          9  businesses.

         10                 So, I think there are some subsets of

         11  the 260 businesses that are there that could be

         12  relocated in more than one alternative location.

         13                 We're looking at, we've looked at

         14  everything that we know of and we're open to

         15  anything that perhaps we've overlooked.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Okay. I just

         17  suggest that as a matter of industrial policy, as a

         18  matter of City policy to maintain and expand the

         19  diversity of our City's economic base, if the City

         20  is going to take steps that will effectively close

         21  down an existing cluster, the City should play a

         22  leading role in creating or recreating new

         23  industrial clusters or expanding existing ones.

         24                 So, just in closing, Mr. Lieber,

         25  Chair, my colleagues, that on the issue of eminent
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          2  domain, eminent domain must remain a vital component

          3  of the City's tool chest for social and economic

          4  progress. But I think the best way to prevent its

          5  abuse is to the check and balance of our system of

          6  government, which means the check and balance

          7  between the executive and legislative branches,

          8  which means it's all the more important that this is

          9  an option that we maintain the City Council's direct

         10  involvement and not find ways to circumvent it

         11  throughout the entirety of the process. And the

         12  final point on fundamental principals, if you will,

         13  as this City, I think it's about time, and hopefully

         14  I think it will be a new starting point, that we

         15  interject an ethical component in our economic

         16  development and Land Use process, so if we make City

         17  land available for new or expanded developments, we

         18  need to assure that those developments go forth in

         19  conformity with our best principals and value which

         20  means assuring that all jobs on this are sustained

         21  with prevailing wages and state-of-the-art safety

         22  and industrial practices, as well as environmental

         23  practices.

         24                 I hope that will be part of this plan

         25  as we go forward. Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Council Member

          3  Yassky, who I know will also be brief.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Very brief.

          5  Thank you. Thank you, Chair Katz.

          6                 So, I won't -- and let me just ask

          7  the audience, please don't applaud, because I want

          8  to make a couple of quick points.

          9                 I want to just -- I share very much

         10  Alan Gerson's concerns about the loss of

         11  manufacturing space. I won't ask you about that

         12  because of the time constraints, but we have lost a

         13  great deal of manufacturing space, many of those I

         14  voted for, supported, but here where you have viable

         15  businesses, that will come up in the Land Use

         16  process, I just want to, I think we need to think

         17  really hard about putting additional manufacturing

         18  space out of use.

         19                 On imminent domain, and I'll just,

         20  I'll go beyond the language of concerns to say that

         21  based on what I have heard and learned about this to

         22  this point, I would oppose use of eminent domain

         23  here on this site. And, you know, the Kilo Decision

         24  (phonetic) says maybe it's constitutional to do it,

         25  but it doesn't mean that we should use eminent
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          2  domain to transfer from one business to another

          3  business, which is really what I see taking place

          4  here.

          5                 And I guess the caution I would give

          6  is in my district, in Williamsburg part, in downtown

          7  Brooklyn part, we had sites that were put under the

          8  -- made subject to eminent domain, huge, huge

          9  tracks made subject to eminent domain 20 years ago

         10  because of an idea. And then the economy turned,

         11  wasn't viable, and they sat and we created blight

         12  because then nobody would invest in these properties

         13  because they were always subject to eminent domain.

         14  And particularly at this time of volatility, I

         15  really worry that you may be doing just that here,

         16  and the fact that you because of Kilo feel that you

         17  can't kind of select a developer, which I agree you

         18  shouldn't, it means when you put eminent domain

         19  forward, the project by definition will not be at a

         20  point when you can be confident it's going to

         21  happen.

         22                 I feel like that's kind of a rock and

         23  a hard place, that there is no way out of, and it

         24  really means eminent domain is not a good idea here.

         25  So, my question is, would you consider, if you are
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          2  going to push forward with it, having a very short

          3  time that it's subject to eminent domain, a year, 18

          4  months, so that if it proves not a viable project,

          5  then you don't have this problem of having created

          6  blight with a 20-year eminent domain.

          7                 Thank you, Chair Katz.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: That's my

         10  question, would you consider that? Having it be for

         11  a very short --

         12                 MR. LIEBER: Was that a question?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I didn't hear one

         14  either.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Yes, for a

         16  very short period of time, rather than the typical

         17  20- or 30-year period?

         18                 MR. LIEBER: We have no interest in

         19  creating blight.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Of course,

         21  well, I'll ask you --

         22                 MR. LIEBER: And we think it's

         23  important to expedite the process so that this

         24  process does result in something being built that we

         25  can all be happy with, satisfied with and is
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          2  productive. So, I agree with you.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Well, just I'd

          4  consider that short window. Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Council Member

          6  Avella.

          7                 And no pressure, but you're the last

          8  one.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Thanks.

         10                 First, before I address my comments

         11  to EDC and President Lieber, I have to correct

         12  something that was said earlier. First of all, I

         13  certainly agree with all of the comments from my

         14  Committee members about eminent domain and the ULURP

         15  process in this regard, but Council Member

         16  Monserrate put into play a spot in my district

         17  within the College Point Corporate Park Flushing

         18  Airport as a possible alternative for some of the

         19  businesses.

         20                 And I think EDC is well aware of the

         21  fact of what the community is seeking for the site,

         22  and for the record it is not in play.

         23                 The community is seeking light

         24  recreation. It is a recommendation from the

         25  community board and other elected officials. That is
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          2  what I would like to see on the site. So, in all

          3  deference to my colleague, that site is not open for

          4  the businesses to relocate.

          5                 You probably remember from our

          6  conversation and our discussion during the first

          7  public hearing that I sort of criticized you for the

          8  tone in which you were talking about the businesses,

          9  and possible relocation and negotiating with them,

         10  and the one thing I mentioned to you which it seems

         11  I never asked them, do they want to stay? And I

         12  think they came across during your testimony the

         13  first time around that that question was never

         14  really asked. And the one thing I picked up on the

         15  testimony today, when you were saying you were

         16  negotiating with the owners, and the landlords, and

         17  the rental properties, first of all, I'm seeing all

         18  the owners here, they're all shaking their heads

         19  saying where are these negotiations, but you

         20  mentioned the word we understand they have a bias,

         21  and I got to tell you that really sticks in my

         22  throat, that you're saying that property owners,

         23  that people who have a business and built it up for

         24  20 to 30 years, and you consider that a bias. They

         25  have a right to be there. They have done the City's
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          2  job for decades. And I can tell you, it shows this

          3  arrogance that EDC continues to have. You know, the

          4  City doesn't have a right to take somebody's piece

          5  of property for no reason. And taking it to give to

          6  a developer who will then turn around and make

          7  millions of dollars on it, I think is a disgrace.

          8  And the City is doing it not only in Willets Point,

          9  in Downtown Brooklyn, and will be doing it in the

         10  Columbia expansion in Harlem as well.

         11                 This has got to stop.

         12                 What I say to you, and I make this

         13  comment, because I know what your answer is going to

         14  be, this is a comment, as Chairman of the Zoning

         15  Committee, unless you take care of the businesses,

         16  either you finally reach an agreement with them,

         17  which doesn't involve eminent domain, or you

         18  incorporate them into the plan, you are not getting

         19  my vote, as Chairman of the Zoning Committee. It is

         20  not happening.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Okay.

         22                 Those are all the questions, Mr.

         23  Lieber.

         24                 Let me leave you with these thoughts.

         25  A lot of the issues that were brought up here today,
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          2  eminent domain, the other issues that we were

          3  talking about that Councilman Yassky was bringing

          4  up, all of them seem to center around the idea that

          5  the Council will lose control and lose any type of

          6  authority with the community after the ULURP is

          7  passed. And so I think we've had these conversations

          8  several times. I'm glad that so many of my

          9  colleagues spoke out so strongly on issues that you

         10  and I and many of them have discussed with you over

         11  the last few months.

         12                 So, I just hope we all take that to

         13  heart as we all move forward, and we appreciate your

         14  time.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 MR. LIEBER: Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: What we want to

         18  do, in the interest of time, and speaking with my

         19  Co-Chair, it's possible because we are limited in

         20  time that we possibly might have another meeting,

         21  hearing?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Yes, we are going

         23  to continue right now but we also are looking for

         24  another room that we might be able to move to. For

         25  now, though, we are trying to figure out how to make
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          2  this a little more brief.

          3                 This is the order that we are going

          4  to call witnesses in. The elected officials. The

          5  unions.  And I would like to thank them, they all

          6  agreed to allow the President of the Central Labor

          7  Council to speak so that they all will not speak and

          8  they are all not in agreement and will stand with

          9  the President. Then the property owners, and then

         10  the Willets Point Development Committee. And that's

         11  all. And then we have a lot more testifiers, but I

         12  just wanted people to know somewhat the order.

         13                 Apparently we can stay here. Okay, so

         14  let's do it. The elected officials are -- we're

         15  going to ask them to come up together, if we can.

         16  Borough President Helen Marshall, State Senator Toby

         17  Staviski, and Assemblywoman Nettie Mayersohn.

         18                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT MARSHALL: Madam

         19  Chair, would you like me to begin.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Okay, I'm going to

         21  ask that the activity -- you're setting up so that

         22  you take less time later; is that the idea? Okay, if

         23  the Sergeant-At-Arms can move aside so that we can

         24  see the great Borough President of Queens, Helen

         25  Marshall. And you can begin. Thank you.
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          2                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT MARSHALL: Thank

          3  you.

          4                 Good afternoon to the Committee

          5  Chairs, both Melinda Katz and Tom White. It's always

          6  a pleasure to be back in these chambers, where I

          7  spent many years sitting in your seats.

          8                 Most recently I was before you in

          9  June testifying on the need to redevelop Willets

         10  Point in a way that is better suited and

         11  complimentary to the resources that surround the

         12  nearby area. The new CitiField, Flushing Bay

         13  Waterfront and Promenade, the Queens Museum, the

         14  Hall of Science, the soon-to-be opened swimming pool

         15  and skating rink, easy access to New York City's

         16  major airports, proximity to major roadways, service

         17  by the Long Island Railroad and the Number 7 Line,

         18  the open space of Flushing Meadows Corona Park,

         19  Worldwide state of the U.S. Open at the National

         20  Tennis Center.

         21                 Many people use or attend events at

         22  these facilities then go home immediately after the

         23  event or activity. The Willets Point Project

         24  promises 1.7 million square feet of mixed use for

         25  development that will encourage people who are
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          2  coming to see a Mets Game or to the U.S. Open to

          3  stay and shop or dine before or after the game.

          4                 The plan also envisions a new hotel

          5  and a mid-size convention center. Such space is

          6  currently unavailable in New York City. For trade

          7  shows and exhibitions, conventions or cultural

          8  events.

          9                 According to the Queens Chamber of

         10  Commerce studying, New York City loses much business

         11  due to the lack of mid-size, a mid-size convention

         12  center in our City.

         13                 In addition to the new activities and

         14  recreation opportunities, there is a housing

         15  component that would yield up to 5,500 units of

         16  affordable housing.

         17                 The new affordable housing would

         18  address a huge housing need and would also enliven

         19  Willets Point, establishing a full-time presence in

         20  the area.

         21                 All of these improvements will

         22  improve Willets Point, Queens, and New York City

         23  also will benefit from the thousands of construction

         24  and permanent jobs that will be created.

         25                 And the new activity will also
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          2  produce a larger tax base and new revenues while

          3  diversifying the uses of Willets Point.

          4                 This is all part of the new vision

          5  for the Willets Point area that was identified in

          6  the Flushing Redevelopment Frame Work Study that we

          7  all worked on.

          8                 The consultants were Cooper Carey and

          9  they said we have to go west to really enhance both

         10  Flushing and Corona. The Willets Point is a crucial

         11  link between Corona and Flushing, and it should be

         12  redeveloped with complimentary uses and activities

         13  that would strengthen the entire region.

         14                 Since we last met here, I have

         15  convened the Willets Point MWBE and local hiring

         16  task force. The members include the major

         17  construction firms, Bovis Lend Lease, Turner

         18  Construction, New York Scaffolding, Union Teamsters,

         19  Local 282 and New York City District Council of

         20  Carpenters, Local 45, Plumbers Local No. 1.

         21                 Small business representatives from

         22  the area and the entire borough, and New York

         23  Association of Minority Contractors and Regional

         24  Alliance of Small Contractors, and the Women's

         25  Builders Council.
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          2                 The task force has met and its

          3  working committees are MWBE hiring/contracts and

          4  local hiring workforce. They are working on ways to

          5  increase MWBE certification and help those small

          6  firms become ready to respond to contract

          7  opportunities.

          8                 The local hiring workforce committee

          9  is working on putting apprenticeship programs and

         10  job readiness programs in place to prepare local

         11  residents for employment opportunities that will

         12  arise during redevelopment of Willets Point.

         13                 New linkages must be found for the

         14  little guys. Connections must be made between the

         15  Greater New York Auto Dealers Association, which has

         16  established a fabulous school right there in College

         17  Point that will help many of our mechanics who are

         18  small guys who don't own big property but in fact,

         19  many of them are in Quansit huts with no water and

         20  no toilets, no air conditioning and no heating

         21  system. They're out against all the elements.

         22                 And also, the multitude of gas

         23  stations and auto dealers in need of expert

         24  mechanics. Also, the school will also prepare them

         25  for dealerships.
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          2                 In addition, my office will work

          3  closely with LaGuardia Community College, which has

          4  just been designated to develop and implement a

          5  workforce assistance plan for Willets Point.

          6                 I have worked for many years, both in

          7  the Assembly and the City Council, with the

          8  stakeholders at Willets Point, and for years they

          9  have been crying for help. And in 1990, I was able

         10  to get a main sewer line included in the

         11  Environmental Bond Act, but the people of the State

         12  of New York did not support it.

         13                 As a result, they have no sewer

         14  lines. They still are dealing with sewer basins.

         15                 It is essential that all present

         16  stakeholders, both large and small, be appropriately

         17  accommodated.

         18                 As Chair of the Willets Point Task

         19  Force, I will recommend that the task force call for

         20  a project labor agreement. This will assure that

         21  work at Willets Point will be done with unions and

         22  prevailing wages for all.

         23                 That project labor agreement should

         24  also be structured to help us achieve our MWBE and

         25  local hiring goals.
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          2                 In addition to the Willets Point Task

          3  Force, there will be monthly meetings of the Willets

          4  Point Steering Group at Borough Hall for updates

          5  from EDC and City agencies to the elected officials

          6  and community board of the area.

          7                 I have lived within walking distance

          8  of Willets Point since 1957. I know of their

          9  hardships. I also recall that every other year there

         10  was a proposed plan for Willets Point, every single

         11  year they faced instability.

         12                 The designs included all kinds of

         13  wonderful things, or not so wonderful things, but

         14  that's what these businesses have had to have been

         15  looking for. They deserve special consideration and

         16  I think that EDC is working hard to meet the needs

         17  of the Willets Point businesses.

         18                 I want to thank President Lieber of

         19  EDC for his handling of the Willets Point project. I

         20  look forward to working with everyone throughout the

         21  process to build the Willets Point of tomorrow.

         22  Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Assemblyman

         24  Mayersohn.

         25                 ASSEMBLY MEMBER MAYERSOHN: Yes, I
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          2  didn't think we'd get to speak today, but it was

          3  very interesting questions. I'm the Assemblywoman,

          4  I'm Nettie Mayersohn, and I represent Willets Point.

          5  And I am supporting this long overdue development.

          6                 The creation of this Urban Renewal

          7  Project is a much-appreciated signal of the City's

          8  commitment in improving the iron triangle. I will

          9  tell you, I have represented this area for decades.

         10  This mixed use plan improves the environmental

         11  conditions in the area, creates much of the

         12  affordable housing that we're desperately in need

         13  of, and it expands the Flushing Meadow Park design

         14  and purpose by including a hotel and convention

         15  center.

         16                 For too long this valued area has

         17  been a source of grief to the surrounding community.

         18  The negative impact on the environment has been

         19  substantial. I don't want to insult anybody, but the

         20  junkyards, the garbage and the stagnant water have

         21  made the iron triangle one of the most undesirable

         22  areas in the borough.

         23                 The proximity to the waterfront in

         24  Flushing Meadows Corona Park only exacerbates the

         25  very serious negative environmental impacts.
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          2                 I think it is important for the

          3  entire area and the borough, that we work together

          4  to revitalize this location. It's close proximity to

          5  several major roadways and parkway and public

          6  transportation make it ideal for future development.

          7                 We have an opportunity to turn this

          8  area into a development which will provide jobs for

          9  area residents, enhances neighboring recreation, and

         10  cultural facilities.

         11                 The Willets Point Urban Renewal area

         12  represents an opportunity to make significant

         13  improvements in a long under-utilized area. These

         14  improvements will not only create a significant

         15  windfall for the City, it has the potential to

         16  positively impact on the lives of thousands of

         17  Queens residents. It's going to create 5,500 new

         18  units of housing, new retail, recreational and

         19  school space and creates 20,000 new construction

         20  jobs and 51 permanent jobs in the retail convention

         21  and hotel portions of the plan.

         22                 You know, speaking of someone who was

         23  fired from her first job at Alexander's Department

         24  Stores in the Bronx for trying to organize a union,

         25  and considering my ties to the organized labor
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          2  movement, I have to emphasize the importance of the

          3  City working with labor to ensure good, reasonable

          4  wage and benefit standards for all of these jobs

          5  that are created, and it isn't enough merely to talk

          6  about created, and it isn't enough nearly to talk

          7  about creating new jobs. We have to make sure they

          8  are union jobs that are going to protect workers and

          9  provide decent standard of living for its workers.

         10                 And we want to keep those workers

         11  right here in this City. I believe that the overall

         12  plan is examined in the context of the surrounding

         13  Flushing College Point and Corona communities, the

         14  benefits of this project are going to be

         15  substantial.

         16                 I also live in Elec Chester

         17  (phonetic), which is Harry Van Osdale (phonetic)

         18  dream of good housing. I am therefore hopeful that

         19  the redevelopment plan will move forward quickly.

         20  And I am pleased that you are working with the

         21  business community which we feel should be treated

         22  fairly and the City has to do everything possible to

         23  ensure their relocation in as smooth and painless a

         24  transition way as possible.

         25                 I'm encouraged by the creation of a
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          2  dedicated business location and workforce assistance

          3  plan, for the area business, and I commend EDC and

          4  the Department of Small Business Services for all

          5  that they have done so far to assist these

          6  businesses. And I want to continue to work with the

          7  business community to make sure they're relocated in

          8  a way that satisfies. I'm looking forward to working

          9  with Mayor Bloomberg, Borough President Marshall,

         10  EDC and former Borough President Clair Shulman, to

         11  ensure that this very, very important project is

         12  successful.

         13                 Thank you very much.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Senator Stavisky,

         15  ditto? No, just kidding.

         16                 ASSEMBLY MEMBER MAYERSOHN: You wish.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: It's worth an

         18  effort.

         19                 Welcome. Welcome to the Council.

         20                 SENATOR STAVISKY: It's very strange

         21  being on this side of the table, I must tell you.

         22                 Before I read my prepared remarks,

         23  let me just say that I have been serving on the

         24  Borough President's MWBE Task Force and also the

         25  Task Force on Willets Point, and we have been
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          2  meeting repeatedly and trying to resolve some of

          3  these issues, and the issues involving the existing

          4  business owners has come up and I would ask EDC that

          5  they provide my office, as well, since I represent

          6  the community as a member of the State Senate that

          7  with the efforts that they have made, at the last

          8  WMBE -- MWBE, I put the W first, at the last meeting

          9  we did receive a printed example of their methods of

         10  reaching out, trying to help the businesses, and

         11  we'd like to see whether this has actually happened.

         12                 The other thing I want to associate

         13  myself with is my objection to using Flushing

         14  Airport. That area is really not suitable for

         15  relocation, and I certainly don't want to see and

         16  iron rectangle replace an iron triangle. I don't

         17  think anybody will benefit.

         18                 Willets Point has been cited in one

         19  of the all-time classics of American Literature, The

         20  Great Gatsby. In it F. Scott Fitzgerald calls

         21  Willets Point "a valley of ashes," and in the

         22  powerpoint presentation they referred to the ashes,

         23  "A valley of ashes bounded on one side by a small

         24  foul river," in other words, the Flushing River, "a

         25  fantastic farm where ashes grow like wheat into
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          2  ridges in hills and grotesque gardens," and despite

          3  being a center of activity for various types of

          4  businesses, there exists unpaved streets, lack of

          5  sewers, and a result that has led Mayor Bloomberg to

          6  call Willets Point a synonym for urban blight.

          7                 And let me skip some of my testimony.

          8  It talks about the ethically diverse neighborhoods,

          9  such as Corona, East Elmhurst and Flushing, and how

         10  Willets Point is at the center of it all, and it

         11  talks about how the Number 7 Train has been a life

         12  line for the community.

         13                 I'm skipping. It talks about the

         14  opening of Mets CitiField in 2009, now is the time

         15  to make improvements to the long-neglected

         16  infrastructure and remediate the oil saturated

         17  pothole laden streets which lack sewers.

         18                 Now is the time to put Willets Point

         19  on track to becoming the robust economic hub that it

         20  clearly has the potential to be. There are a number

         21  of plans to redevelop the land, revitalize the

         22  waterfront and reconnect the region to surrounding

         23  communities.

         24                 There is a pressing need throughout

         25  the City and particularly in the Borough of Queens
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          2  for more affordable housing.

          3                 In Willets Point we have a unique

          4  opportunity to create more living space and create a

          5  significant economic draw for the region. There is a

          6  need for a sustainable community with commercial,

          7  retail, recreational and entertainment complexes,

          8  mixed income housing and elementary school, a

          9  convention center, a community center and a large

         10  hotel.

         11                 The clean-up and subsequent

         12  development should include some open space for

         13  parks, increased and improved waterfront access, and

         14  create thousands of new jobs, union jobs, both

         15  temporary from the construction, and permanent jobs

         16  that are union jobs that pay a living wage so that

         17  the community can be sustained.

         18                 People who will hold these jobs are

         19  law-abiding people, they pay our taxes and they obey

         20  our laws, and it is only fair that they receive the

         21  protection of belonging to a union. They will

         22  testify that there are many accidents on these

         23  non-union jobs and I think one accident is too many.

         24                 Now, whether we're watching the USTA

         25  Open in the fall, enjoying a walk in Flushing Meadow
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          2  Park, or eating at restaurants in Flushing and

          3  Corona, Queens has so much to offer.

          4                 There is no reason why Willets Point

          5  shouldn't become one more reason for us to be proud

          6  of our borough. Hopefully, when someone writes about

          7  the area again, they will not call it a "valley of

          8  ashes," but instead a Phoenix, the bird which rose

          9  from the ashes to begin life anew.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT MARSHALL: Madam

         12  Chair, could I just add that many of the businesses

         13  on Willets Point are essential businesses for our

         14  City. They are not all junk heaps. And I think

         15  that's why we're working so hard to make sure that

         16  if we move them, we move them to appropriate places

         17  where they can continue to be productive. Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I think we

         19  definitely all agree on that. And we're going to see

         20  in a few minutes they have made a ten-minute

         21  presentation and have agreed, instead of each one

         22  testifying separately, which would take an

         23  inordinate amount of time, they have made a

         24  presentation that we're looking forward to seeing

         25  and that's going to be in a few minutes.
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          2                 So, I thank you all for coming down.

          3  Senator Stavisky, you have an excellent speech

          4  writer.

          5                 SENATOR STAVISKY: I wrote it myself.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: You are an

          7  excellent speech writer.

          8                 SENATOR STAVISKY: And I have the

          9  Fitzgerald --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you.

         11                 We're not ready for the presentation

         12  yet. So, if that could be turned off, I'd appreciate

         13  that. Thanks.

         14                 I would like to call up the unions. I

         15  want to thank them as they move up. They all agreed,

         16  and I will read off who they are, they will speak

         17  through Ed Ott, who is the President of the Central

         18  Labor Council. And, so -- President? Executive

         19  Director. Sorry, Gary.

         20                 MR. OTT: As long as they pay me.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: He is the Executive

         22  Director of the Central Labor Council and the unions

         23  have agreed to let him speak on their behalf. But I

         24  would like to read the unions that are represented

         25  here so that they can show that they are represented
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          2  in force.

          3                 Jane Thompson, RWDSU, is the

          4  Political Director. Steve McInnis, Carpenters Union.

          5  Mike McGuire, Mason Tenderers. Jack Kittle, Painters

          6  District Council No. 9. Paul Fernandez, Building

          7  Trades. Jim Conway, Operating Engineers. Camile

          8  River, 32BJ. Eddie Cadino, New York Hotel and Motel

          9  Trades, and I saw Pat Purcell there from 1500. Did I

         10  miss any unions that are represented? No? And

         11  Heather, of course. Hi, Heather.

         12                 Okay, the Executive Director, Central

         13  Labor Council, Ed Ott, and I understand you have a

         14  brief statement on behalf of the entire delegation

         15  that you represent.

         16                 MR. OTT: Thank you, Chairman White,

         17  Chairman Katz.  Very nice to see you today, Council

         18  members. I'll get right into it.

         19                 The New York City Central Labor

         20  Council believes the Willets Point Redevelopment

         21  Plan has the potential to generate significant

         22  economic growth for the City.

         23                 However, in order to promote

         24  development that is both responsible and

         25  sustainable, sufficient labor standards must be
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          2  included and the City must ensure that the taxpayers

          3  share in the benefits.

          4                 We have been aggressively supporting

          5  economic development in collaboration with the City,

          6  the business community and the community over the

          7  last couple of years. We are at a point now where we

          8  have to ask hard questions relating to how we should

          9  be approaching future economic development in this

         10  City.

         11                 One of the benefits of promoting

         12  economic development projects has always been job

         13  creation. But what kind of jobs are we trying to

         14  create and support. We are giving jobs to people but

         15  not careers, and there is a significant point of

         16  distinction between the two. While we have managed

         17  to keep unemployment relatively low, working

         18  people's wages have stagnated. More and more New

         19  Yorkers go to work every day but do not earn enough

         20  to make ends meet. If we do not change the way we

         21  approach development in the City, we are in danger

         22  of creating a permanent underclass of working poor,

         23  under the guise of a new prosperity.

         24                 The redevelopment at Willets Point

         25  has the potential to do great things for the
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          2  residents Queens. But in order for the project to

          3  truly revitalize the area, and, quote, create the

          4  next great neighborhood, the City must ensure labor

          5  standards and accountability measures that will

          6  protect workers and the public interest.

          7                 The plan projects the creation of

          8  500,000 square feet of office space, 700 hotel

          9  rooms, and over 1 million square feet of retail and

         10  entertainment space. Fifty-five hundred units of

         11  mixed income housing, and other uses such as

         12  dedicated open space and community space.

         13                 With all the opportunity that is

         14  expected to result from the redevelopment of this

         15  area, there is a lot to be gained here. There is

         16  also a lot that could be lost if we do not take

         17  advantage of the moment.

         18                 We believe it is primarily the

         19  responsibility of the City not the developer to

         20  ensure the economic livelihood of the people.

         21                 We also believe that there is a

         22  public investment on any public action to create an

         23  economic development project, there should also be

         24  assurances on creating quality jobs with real

         25  standards. With that in mind, the City should
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          2  include in the Willets Point plan provisions that

          3  specify labor standards and bind the developer and

          4  their contractors and successors to those standards.

          5                 Similar standards should be

          6  considered that can be applied to all other economic

          7  development projects moving forward.

          8                 The City should also make sure that

          9  this project benefits the City's taxpayers. To that

         10  extent, the lease or sale of any land taken by

         11  eminent domain should also include revenue-sharing

         12  mechanisms that increase the amount of money the

         13  City receives, if the project has increased

         14  revenues. These revenues should be protected by a

         15  labor peace agreement.

         16                 In order to achieve sustainable

         17  development at Willets Point, the plan must include

         18  labor standards that incorporate the following

         19  concepts:

         20                 The City should provide meaningful

         21  training and career opportunities for new workers

         22  and to encourage the use of contractors and

         23  subcontractors which invest in a skilled qualified

         24  and safe workforce.

         25                 The plan must include labor standards
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          2  that support good jobs defined by livable wages. The

          3  City should ensure that all building and

          4  construction jobs pay prevailing wage and that real

          5  wage standards are attached to all building service

          6  jobs, retail jobs, hotel jobs, and other jobs that

          7  are generated from the development.

          8                 Such wage requirements should apply

          9  to all permanent employees, whether they work under

         10  a contract or subcontract. All tenants, subtenants,

         11  contractors and subcontractors should comply with

         12  set wage requirements. In addition, to ensure that

         13  any hotels that are built in the area are not

         14  unreasonably disruptive to the surrounding

         15  neighborhood, or blur the line between hotel and

         16  residential development, a special permit should be

         17  required for any hotel, motel or other extended

         18  State facility built on the site.

         19                 The CLC supports economic development

         20  efforts in the City, but we must redefine the way in

         21  which we approach development so that communities

         22  like Willets Point can benefit.

         23                 Thank you for your time.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you, Mr. Ott.

         25                 I would like to thank all of your
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          2  unions for their cooperation today. And really, all

          3  of the unions that are represented today in the

          4  Chamber. You guys have been a great audience. I know

          5  I gave you a little hard time, everyone should be

          6  very proud we got through this quickly so far and I

          7  thank everyone.

          8                 For the record, I want to make sure

          9  that I read into the record that written testimony

         10  has been submitted by Jack Kittle of the Painters;

         11  Mike McGuire, Mason Tenderers; Steve McInnis,

         12  Carpenters; RWDSU, headed by Stewart Applebaum. And

         13  those are the written ones I have so far. James

         14  Conway is about to hand me testimony as well from

         15  Operating Engineers. And whatever else you have you

         16  can hand in after. That's great.

         17                 Leroy Comrie, Councilman Comrie, has

         18  a quick question.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I just apologize.

         21  Can I just acknowledge David Weprin who came in

         22  during the last testifier.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Thank you,

         25  madam Chair.
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          2                 I'm going to ask a basic question,

          3  and I'd like you to really elaborate on your

          4  statement, because you said a lot of things in

          5  generalities, but where do you feel there is the

          6  major sticking point to breaking this hurdle?

          7                 As you know, we are trying to look at

          8  doing prevailing wages on specific sites, looking at

          9  rezonings, with bringing in the opportunity to

         10  ensure that there is a living wage provision in

         11  there; what do you think is the major sticking point

         12  to breaking this hurdle of ensuring that there is an

         13  opportunity to have development that is including

         14  union standards, throughout not just the

         15  construction at a job but the actual placement of

         16  actual jobs and sustainable jobs throughout that

         17  site?

         18                 MR. OTT: Well, I don't want to call

         19  it a sticking point. I think what we're basically

         20  saying is that over the last numbers of years

         21  there's been tremendous economic development in the

         22  City.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Right.

         24                 MR. OTT: There are some best

         25  practices, which we want to engage the City on, that
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          2  can be codified, put down in a general practice,

          3  that we begin to set standards.

          4                 I'll give you an example. In retail

          5  we create thousands of jobs. People can't live on

          6  those jobs. We want to talk about where the City is

          7  involved, and we have made a public commitment at

          8  one form or another that certain standards be

          9  plugged in there so people can actually have a

         10  decent life.

         11                 We have an issue of affordable

         12  housing in the City that needs to be addressed in

         13  every economic development project.

         14                 I mean, frankly, we've got people

         15  commuting from Pennsylvania that work in this City

         16  and it's all driven by the cost of housing. And the

         17  truth of the matter is, with the labor movement the

         18  same here today, is we want to rethink this whole

         19  economic development approach, and we want to codify

         20  best practices.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And what best

         22  practices are out there that you feel will be

         23  emulated?

         24                 MR. OTT: We believe that wherever the

         25  City has an interest, or has provided a subsidy that
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          2  they have the right to promote livable wages, the

          3  right to make greater demands on affordable housing.

          4                 We want to share in the wealth.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And did you

          6  look at the numbers that they are calling for,

          7  affordable housing numbers of this project?

          8                 MR. OTT: Well, see, here is the truth

          9  about affordable housing. If we built 50,000 units a

         10  year for ten years, it leaves us right where we are

         11  today in a crisis.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Right.

         13                 MR. OTT: Housing needs to be moved to

         14  the top of the agenda. Affordable housing. At the

         15  end of World War II, public housing, affordable

         16  housing was the commitment of federal, State and

         17  local government. The government needs to recommit

         18  and so do we.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay, thank

         20  you.

         21                 I just wanted to have you clarify on

         22  some of those issues.

         23                 Also, just that the other sticking

         24  point on this issue is -- pardon me?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: We're trying to --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: You're trying

          3  to move me forward? Okay. I'm trying to move

          4  forward, too.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Subtly has always

          6  been one of my best qualities.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I understand.

          8                 Again, I appreciate your focus and

          9  your drive to try to make this happen. I'm just

         10  looking at the projects that are coming down the

         11  line, and all the work that's coming in the City,

         12  and there just doesn't seem to be a real effort to

         13  bring this to bear.

         14                 And I just want to recommit to you my

         15  support to try to make this happen in a larger

         16  forum, or in a specific forum to get this done,

         17  because I think I've been personally frustrated in

         18  making this happen on a specific project level. And

         19  we talk about these things in generalities and we

         20  talk about them as a utopian type of way, but when

         21  we get down to the nitty-gritty, it doesn't get

         22  embedded into these projects. And we really need to

         23  take a larger look at it. Thank you.

         24                 MR. OTT: Well, I think one thing,

         25  Council member, that we're really here to say today,
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          2  we have a unified labor movement at this point on

          3  the whole question of economic development.

          4                 We'll be coming back to the Council

          5  as a group with specific proposals, but we are

          6  committed to rethinking this.

          7                 We cannot ask the working class of

          8  this City to carry economic development around on

          9  their back with substandard conditions and wages,

         10  and we're going to change it.

         11                 There was a time when the Central

         12  Labor Council did not do these things, and they

         13  could be ignored. This is not that time.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I have a very, just

         15  a very -- I have a very quick question and then I

         16  need to get you off the stand before you have all of

         17  the Council members on the Committees clapping every

         18  time you talk.

         19                 You actually have extremely good

         20  arguments, and I know that many of the Council

         21  members up here are in agreement with you.

         22                 But I have just a very quick yes or

         23  no question which is, has the City reached out to

         24  you, EDC at all? You heard up here myself, me and

         25  several of the other Council members ask EDC
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          2  regarding the labor and the RFP that has been issued

          3  for Willets Point, and whether or not they are

          4  committed to using union labor; have they reached

          5  out to you at all?

          6                 MR. OTT: We have a respectful and

          7  productive relationship with the City, with the

          8  developers and with everybody involved.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Well, I mean, I'm

         10  just curious as to whether or not you are

         11  negotiating --

         12                 MR. OTT: We have a productive and

         13  respectful relationship with the City.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I appreciate your

         15  time and everyone that has joined you here today.

         16  Thank you very much, Mr. Ott.

         17                 MR. OTT: Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: We now have the

         19  property owners that we have heard so much about

         20  today. They have agreed, all ten of them, to give a

         21  short presentation, instead of testifying, and then

         22  we are going to hear from the Willets Point

         23  Redevelopment Committee, which is represented,

         24  represented by former Borough President Claire

         25  Shulman.
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          2                 So, Dan Feinstein. These are the

          3  property owners in the area of Willets Point.

          4                 It's called the Willets Point Realty

          5  Association. Dan Feinstein and Feinstein Iron Works.

          6  Dan Scully, Peter Tully, Rick Win, from Tully

          7  Construction. Tom Mena, from T. Mena Supplies. Gerry

          8  and David Antonacci, Crown Containers. Jake and Jack

          9  Bono, from Bono Sawdust Supplies. Yaron Rosenthal

         10  from Parts Authority. Tony, John, Gerard, and Fodera

         11  Foods. Niel Soni, House of Spices. Sal Bucello, QC

         12  Iron Works. Daniel, Sr. and Jr., Sambucci from

         13  Sambucci Brothers. And they have a presentation.

         14  Again, these are the property owners in the area of

         15  Willets Point. Thank you.

         16                 (The following is a transcription of

         17  a video presentation.)

         18                 PARTICIPANT: They have taken this

         19  broad brush, and they've painted Willets Point as

         20  nothing but junkyards, abandoned cars and

         21  dilapidated buildings. They don't --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Is there a way to

         23  turn this louder?

         24                 PARTICIPANT: -- Portray them true,

         25  it's always the chop-shops, the people cutting cars
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          2  in the street. It's always the same street with the

          3  same potholes. It's just an eyesore. But you don't

          4  see what's behind the curb line or vibrant

          5  businesses, legitimate businesses that have been

          6  down here for generations.

          7                 PARTICIPANT: There's thousands of

          8  employees working like crazy to make a living.

          9                 PARTICIPANT: We play an integral part

         10  to the City's economy providing iron working,

         11  construction, saw pipes, autobody, bakery

         12  ingredients, food ingredients.

         13                 PARTICIPANT: All we're trying to do

         14  is contribute to New York City and make it a better

         15  place.

         16                 PARTICIPANT: The blight you see the

         17  City created. It's the holes that are in the

         18  streets, it's the sewers that are not here.

         19                 PARTICIPANT: The City created that,

         20  and at the same time they want people to see that to

         21  say, hey, we have to get rid of that.

         22                 PARTICIPANT: I think it's a land

         23  grab.

         24                 PARTICIPANT: You're out. We're going

         25  to need this land so somebody else can make
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          2  something else out of it.

          3                 PARTICIPANT: If the City were to take

          4  our land and they just give it to some big

          5  developer, that's not right.

          6                 PARTICIPANT: But they hold that card

          7  at the end, that eminent domain card.

          8                 PARTICIPANT: It's abuse, what's about

          9  to happen.

         10                 PARTICIPANT: It's about destroying

         11  lives, destroying businesses, destroying

         12  livelihoods.

         13                 PARTICIPANT: It's not the American

         14  way.

         15                 PARTICIPANT: It's morally wrong. The

         16  City should come here and help the businesses to

         17  prosper, instead of destroying us.

         18                 FORMER SPEAKER VALLONE: Hi. I'm Peter

         19  Vallone. I represented this great City of ours for

         20  27 years, and I loved every second of it. I'm here

         21  to talk to you about Willets Point.

         22                 There is no question in my mind, or

         23  anybody's mind, that the City has to expand and

         24  improve, otherwise we still would be owned by the

         25  Dutch. I'm very much in favor in whatever is good
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          2  for the City and doing the right thing. But is the

          3  City planning to do the right thing for Willets

          4  Point? I don't think so.

          5                 The City claims that this is a

          6  blighted area. It's not a blighted area, it's a

          7  neglected area. Deliberately neglected by the City

          8  of New York - not putting sewers in, not putting

          9  paved roads, no services - in spite of the fact that

         10  the businesses of Willets Point have generated

         11  billions of dollars of economic activity to this

         12  great City of ours and hundreds of millions of

         13  dollars of revenue.

         14                 So, let's talk about what's the right

         15  thing to do for Willets Point. Why don't you listen

         16  to some of the businesses and some of the people who

         17  have made this such a successful place for the City

         18  of New York and not listened to people who want to

         19  take it away and give it to other private owners.

         20  Makes no sense, folks. It's unAmerican.

         21                 MR. BONO: I'm Jake Bono, and this is

         22  Bono Sawdust Supply, a third-generation business

         23  operating in Willets Point. We are the only

         24  manufacturers of sweeping compound left in New York

         25  City.
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          2                 MR. ROSENTHAL: My name is Yaron

          3  Rosenthal. My company is the Parts Authority. The

          4  Parts Authority is a wholesale distributor of auto

          5  parts we deliver within 30 to 45 minutes.

          6                 MR. SAMBUCCI: I'm Danny Sambucci,

          7  Sr., from Sambucci Brothers, and these are my cars.

          8                 PARTICIPANT: We're a third-generation

          9  business. We've been located in Willets Point for

         10  over 50 years.

         11                 MR. MINER: I am Tom Miner, and this

         12  is T. Miner Supplier. We are a distributor of water

         13  and sewer construction product.

         14                 MR. TULLY: My name is Peter Tully.

         15  I'm the President of Tully Construction, which is a

         16  firm that operates primarily in the City of New York

         17  and its various agencies.

         18                 MR. FODERO: My name is Anthony

         19  Fodero, and I am the senior partner of Fodero Foods.

         20  We are a third-generation family business, supplying

         21  bakery ingredients throughout the Tristate area but

         22  nationally, as well, for over 77 years.

         23                 MR. ANTONACCI: Hi. I'm Gerry

         24  Antonacci from Crown Containers. We are a

         25  full-service waste removal company. We recycle
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          2  everything that's brought to us at our recycling

          3  station.

          4                 MR. FEINSTEIN: I'm Dan Feinstein. I'm

          5  the President of Feinstein IronWorks, and have been

          6  fabricating and erecting structural steel in the

          7  City of New York for over 75 years.

          8                 MR. SONI: I am Neil Soni, President

          9  of House of Spices, India, Inc. We are the only

         10  manufacturer of the Indian food items in the United

         11  States. We have made the name for ourselves, due to

         12  the mere fact that it is made fresh here.

         13                 PARTICIPANT: This area is very

         14  desirable. It's the confluence of five major

         15  highways.

         16                 PARTICIPANT: If you have to put a peg

         17  on a map, this is the place. Right here. We're a

         18  perfect location.

         19                 PARTICIPANT: You can get anywhere

         20  east, west, north and south, pretty vital to a

         21  distribution type of business.

         22                 MR. SONI: I don't think in New York

         23  City we can get a better location than right here.

         24                 PARTICIPANT: We're located in a very,

         25  very strategic place and we're here for a reason:
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          2  this area is critical to us because of all of the

          3  different areas we can reach.

          4                 PARTICIPANT: Were we not to be here,

          5  there's a good chance we wouldn't be in business

          6  today. If we're not in this area. We would lose most

          7  of that business.

          8                 PARTICIPANT: It's almost like there

          9  are two areas here: there is the area that we have,

         10  our facilities, which are clean and modern and

         11  presentable, and then there's the area that the City

         12  has, which is a disgrace.

         13                 PARTICIPANT: The City has created

         14  this condition, and now they want to say, oh, it's

         15  blighted.

         16                 PARTICIPANT: But the area is not

         17  blighted. The area is severely neglected. It is

         18  their neglect that has caused these unmanageable

         19  situations here.

         20                 PARTICIPANT: The City has withheld

         21  basic services that are available everywhere else in

         22  New York City. We're treated like second-class

         23  citizens down here. They love our tax dollars but

         24  they don't give us any service.

         25                 PARTICIPANT: Our tax bill is over
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          2  $165,000 a year.

          3                 PARTICIPANT: Sanitation? No.

          4  Snowplowing? No. Sewers? No.

          5                 PARTICIPANT: The streets are

          6  horrendous. There are cars junked in the middle of

          7  the street because the City won't come here and

          8  enforce the code. We don't have sidewalks, we don't

          9  have lights.

         10                 PARTICIPANT: The catchbasins all

         11  blocked up. They never come by to clean them.

         12                 PARTICIPANT: When it rains you can't

         13  even walk in here. It's like, you know, it's like a

         14  lake outside.

         15                 PARTICIPANT: We are affectionately

         16  called Fodero Lake. There are no storm drains, so

         17  there is no place for this water to go. It just sits

         18  for days and days and days.

         19                 PARTICIPANT: You know when they

         20  cleaned this sewer here? Forty years ago.

         21                 PARTICIPANT: No matter how many phone

         22  calls we've made to the City, they just ignore us.

         23                 PARTICIPANT: It's pretty ironic that

         24  we sell 75 percent of the sewer pipe in the City of

         25  New York and there aren't any sanitary sewers in our
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          2  area.

          3                 PARTICIPANT: Cesspools. Yes, New York

          4  City still has cesspools.

          5                 PARTICIPANT: It's unbelievable that

          6  in this day and age that we're dealing with

          7  cesspools in this City of New York.

          8                 MR. SONI: And the City doesn't clean

          9  the street, nothing.

         10                 PARTICIPANT: When they sweep the

         11  streets, they sweep right around Shea Stadium, and

         12  the guy goes home. He doesn't come down any of our

         13  blocks. Why? If you're right across the street, why

         14  won't you come down the block?

         15                 PARTICIPANT: We clean it. That's why

         16  our street is clean.

         17                 PARTICIPANT: Why should we have to

         18  pay our own employees to clean up the City's mess.

         19  When, in fact, it really is the City's mess?

         20                 PARTICIPANT: How come when there is a

         21  tennis or a ball game the sweepers are in the front

         22  of my place, and all year through the winter you

         23  don't see them?

         24                 PARTICIPANT: That's in my view, you

         25  know, the clear proof that they could give us the
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          2  services. It's not that they don't have the money,

          3  it's that they neglected us on purpose.

          4                 PARTICIPANT: The lack of these

          5  services brings the type of businesses that create

          6  the eyesore - the repair shops and the junkyards and

          7  the corrugated sheds that you see. No one else would

          8  build over here.

          9                 PARTICIPANT: Fed Ex, for example,

         10  came in here and desperately needed a facility, but

         11  because of the lack of sanitary sewers, they

         12  declined to come into the area.

         13                 PARTICIPANT: We've had meetings with

         14  City officials for the past 30 years, and we pleaded

         15  with them to please provide the services that we're

         16  entitled to get, and they said we're not giving it

         17  to you.

         18                 They don't even hide the fact that

         19  they're not giving it to us. They say it.

         20                 PARTICIPANT: The former Borough

         21  President Claire Shulman said she did not want to

         22  invest in the infrastructure because we're not worth

         23  it.

         24                 Well, if we're not worth it, she

         25  shouldn't take my tax dollars.
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          2                 PARTICIPANT: I think if the City

          3  provided sewers, streets without potholes, plowing,

          4  street cleaning, I think this neighborhood would

          5  have probably changed by itself. But I think the

          6  City in a way, maybe they didn't want this area to

          7  change.

          8                 PARTICIPANT: This area has always

          9  been earmarked for a greater plan.

         10                 PARTICIPANT: They want to redevelop

         11  the area for somebody else.

         12                 PARTICIPANT: Every couple of years

         13  we're always faced with a project that's going to

         14  throw us off our land, you know? And it's always

         15  thrown us off our land. Our land.

         16                 PARTICIPANT: The City of New York is

         17  trying to acquire this property, develop this

         18  property. This is the third time I've been told in

         19  the last 50 or 60 years.

         20                 PARTICIPANT: This is three. From

         21  Moses, I was a kid, only in my twenties, wanted it

         22  and lost it. Then Trump wanted it. Then Bloomberg

         23  wanted it for the Olympics, and that didn't come.

         24  And now they're coming back at us again.

         25                 PARTICIPANT: This whole possible
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          2  development of the area has kind of frozen the area,

          3  it stymied everybody.

          4                 How can you invest money in an area

          5  where you feel you won't be there in five years?

          6                 This is why down here it's been held

          7  down. No one wants to invest money because no one

          8  feels they're going to stay here.

          9                 PARTICIPANT: We're reluctant to

         10  invest in our facilities. We're reluctant to sign

         11  contracts.

         12                 PARTICIPANT: We would have expanded

         13  the manufacturing facility. We would have further

         14  expanded the offices.

         15                 MR. SONI: We would have added more

         16  jobs. Not now. If this cloud was not hanging over

         17  us.

         18                 PARTICIPANT: And it's horrible,

         19  believe me. You don't really sleep a lot of nights.

         20                 PARTICIPANT: I have vendors I have

         21  exclusive deals with. They're worried about their

         22  products getting to marketplace; are we going to be

         23  in business? We're not going to be in business?

         24                 MR. SONI: I have to keep employees

         25  happy here. They read the newspapers and say, "Mr.
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          2  Soni, what's going to happen? How am I going to go

          3  to Bronx? How am I going to go to Brooklyn if you

          4  go? I cannot come there."

          5                 "I said, sir, I do not know."

          6                 PARTICIPANT: The City has been tying

          7  the hands of the businesses down here. Instead of

          8  helping us, they've worked against us this whole

          9  time.

         10                 PARTICIPANT: The current situation

         11  with Willets Point is the City of New York has this

         12  damaclese of building CitiField across the street

         13  and threatening the use of eminent domain.

         14                 PARTICIPANT: The EDC has tried to

         15  portray this area as completely contaminated. And

         16  their only solution is to wipe out all of these

         17  businesses so that they can remediate the entire

         18  area at once.

         19                 Not only is that not necessary,

         20  that's not even their plan. Their plan is to

         21  remediate pockets of contamination one at a time as

         22  they find it. Well, that's what we land owners have

         23  already been doing with the DEC. We've closed

         24  numerous open spill numbers and remediated acres of

         25  property here in Willets Point.
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          2                 PARTICIPANT: In fact, we've had

          3  environmentals down on here, this property is clean.

          4                 PARTICIPANT: The government officials

          5  are supposed to be looking out for the people, not

          6  hurting the people. Our rights are being destroyed.

          7                 MR. SONI: They want to get us out and

          8  give it to a big developer, who can make a

          9  convention center, some housing.

         10                 PARTICIPANT: And replace us with a

         11  wage that is half of what the people that work for

         12  us make.

         13                 PARTICIPANT: And they're going to

         14  give the new developer streets and sewers that we've

         15  been waiting for 40 years for.

         16                 PARTICIPANT: This plan was not

         17  formulated with the City Council, not formulated

         18  with the local residents. The reason they think this

         19  plan is viable is because developers have said they

         20  want it and they think it will work.

         21                 PARTICIPANT: And they talk about my

         22  property as if they already own it.

         23                 PARTICIPANT: They're showing our

         24  property to potential buyers.

         25                 PARTICIPANT: And I don't want to sell
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          2  it, but if you've got a gun to my head with eminent

          3  domain, then do I have a choice?

          4                 PARTICIPANT: I see that this is an

          5  abusive power.

          6                 MR. SONI: And anybody that I talk to

          7  in the United States, anybody, they say how can the

          8  United States government do that? They take from you

          9  to give to somebody else? Well, that's exactly what

         10  is happening.

         11                 PARTICIPANT: They got a hotel on my

         12  land. And they didn't even discuss anything with me.

         13  In other words, you're knocking me right out of

         14  business.

         15                 PARTICIPANT: Morally, I cannot see

         16  doing this. This is America. There's memories here.

         17  There's people here that have pictures of their

         18  great grandfather on the wall.

         19                 PARTICIPANT: These are the guys who

         20  came to America for the American dream. And it's

         21  being stripped from us.

         22                 PARTICIPANT: My family built this

         23  business 75 years ago, and it's a shame that we have

         24  to fight for our own property.

         25                 MR. SONI: This is not right. This
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          2  should not happen in America. Yes, it can happen

          3  somewhere else, we don't care. It should not happen

          4  in America.

          5                 PARTICIPANT: The citizens of our City

          6  have said loud and clear, that they don't want the

          7  municipalities to abuse this right of eminent

          8  domain. It wasn't meant to increase the pockets of

          9  the rich developers.

         10                 PARTICIPANT: I'm not against

         11  progress, but I certainly want to be part of the

         12  process, and I don't like having my property stolen

         13  from me. This is legalized theft.

         14                 PARTICIPANT: We would hope at the

         15  very least that the City Council has the decency to

         16  take eminent domain off the block.

         17                 PARTICIPANT: Eminent domain is not

         18  the right way to do things. To come here and take it

         19  and say this is what you're going to get and be

         20  happy with it? No. We don't go along with that.

         21                 PARTICIPANT: We have to be

         22  compensated for land that you can't find any place

         23  else.

         24                 I drive around the City all day every

         25  day. I don't see any place that can duplicate this
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          2  for what we do.

          3                 PARTICIPANT: If you take the ten

          4  businesses of the Willets Point industry and realty

          5  association and try to move them next door into the

          6  next block, it's almost impossible.

          7                 Our businesses require M3-1 zoning.

          8                 PARTICIPANT: There is no M3 left and

          9  the City, I don't think, has any property to give

         10  us.

         11                 PARTICIPANT: If you put me up in the

         12  Bronx, it would be a major, major impact to our cost

         13  for transportation, for our employees to get there,

         14  our equipment to get there. The fact of the matter

         15  is, this is where we want to be. This is where we

         16  chose to be in the seventies.

         17                 PARTICIPANT: This area is so

         18  critical, and without an M3 zone like this, where

         19  are these jobs going to go?

         20                 PARTICIPANT: We have 85 well-paid

         21  professionals working here. There is not one job

         22  that is a minimum wage job.

         23                 PARTICIPANT: In my case, they're the

         24  blue collar employees that live in Queens and that

         25  want businesses like ours to remain in Queens.
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          2                 PARTICIPANT: Top-notch employees.

          3  They get paid a lot of money. We have two different

          4  union shops here.

          5                 PARTICIPANT: This is a family. We run

          6  it as a family business and we treat our employees

          7  as family.

          8                 PARTICIPANT: Our employees have the

          9  kind of jobs that have left New York.

         10                 These are skilled employees, skilled

         11  workers, that provide a tremendous service in

         12  benefits in the City of New York.

         13                 PARTICIPANT: All of their jobs are in

         14  jeopardy if we lose this location.

         15                 PARTICIPANT: There just seems there's

         16  a lot that has gone without thought. The proposal

         17  hasn't been thought through at all. It's a concept.

         18                 And my biggest fear is that the

         19  property is taken and nothing every gets built.

         20                 PARTICIPANT: We've been here. You

         21  know, we live here every day, and we know how

         22  valuable this land is, and we know that it has

         23  development potential, but why should somebody else

         24  get that opportunity? Why shouldn't it be us?

         25                 PARTICIPANT: For a fraction of the

                                                            131

          1  COMMITTEES ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND LAND USE

          2  amount of money the City is going to spend. Put the

          3  streets in. Put the sewer system in. And watch what

          4  happens.

          5                 This area would develop all by

          6  itself. It wouldn't need the City to step in because

          7  you would have the owners developing the land.

          8                 PARTICIPANT: The area would be

          9  transformed overnight. And all of the eyesore-type

         10  of businesses that the people of the City don't want

         11  would vanish.

         12                 PARTICIPANT: Who would want to rent

         13  to a body shop when they can get ten times the rent

         14  from somebody else?

         15                 PARTICIPANT: Just put the sewers in.

         16  Fed Ex will come, and many other potential tenants

         17  that would love to be near the airport.

         18                 PARTICIPANT: If we had sewers, if we

         19  had sidewalks, this area would develop itself.

         20                 PARTICIPANT: Without conflicting,

         21  without taking anyone's rights away, without abusing

         22  political powers, this could all happen naturally.

         23                 MR. SONI: And, finally, it will hold

         24  up the American way of life.

         25                 PARTICIPANT: We don't want to leave.
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          2  We want to stay and we want to grow.

          3                 PARTICIPANT: I want to stay where I

          4  am. This is my home.

          5                 PARTICIPANT: We want to stay here.

          6  Let us develop our land. It's our land.

          7                 PARTICIPANT: Give us the

          8  infrastructure. Talk to us about making this an

          9  economic zone. There is no reason why we can't stay

         10  and be integrated into any plan. Just work with us.

         11  Just give us the opportunity.

         12                 (End of video presentation.)

         13                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I want to turn the

         14  lights on.

         15                 I'd like to congratulate you for the

         16  hard work that was clearly put in the video. I know

         17  we had a lot of conversations about whether or not

         18  you should do the video here or whether we should

         19  show, whether you should testify, and I'm glad that

         20  I was outvoted. It was a truly impressive video.

         21                 I think I would like in the interest

         22  of time, I think a lot of the Council members'

         23  questions surround the idea of how much EDC and the

         24  City truly has worked with you.

         25                 So, if I can ask your lawyer,
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          2  lobbyist, and all of you as a group to get together

          3  and write the members of the Land Use Committee and

          4  the Economic Development Committee about your

          5  dealings with the City, how many times you've met

          6  with them, your views on the reaching out, I think

          7  that would be extremely helpful to the members, all

          8  right? So we have an idea of how that works.

          9                 Is that okay with everyone?

         10                 Anything else?

         11                 There's been a lot of discussion

         12  about your properties today, so whatever you're

         13  doing, you're reaching out and reaching a lot of

         14  folks, so we thank you.

         15                 And now you're going to get us that

         16  information so that we have it? That would be great.

         17  I appreciate it.

         18                 Anything else? Okay, the Willets

         19  Point Development Corporation. Let me just say

         20  former Borough President Claire Shulman, for the

         21  Flushing, Willets Point, Corona LDC. I apologize for

         22  not calling by its correct name before, Madam

         23  President.

         24                 And I have Wellington Chen, you're

         25  going together; is that right? Okay. Great.
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          2                 Thank you very much for your patience

          3  today. We didn't expect all of the testimony to be

          4  so long, Mrs. Shulman. So, I apologize for that. And

          5  thank you for being here today, again. You were here

          6  last time as well. And one of the few people that

          7  stayed til the end of the hearing last time.

          8                 MS. SHULMAN: Good afternoon, or

          9  should I say good evening?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Good evening.

         11                 MS. SHULMAN: Thank you, Chairs White

         12  and Katz, and all the Council members who are

         13  present today for this opportunity to present my

         14  views on the Willets Point Redevelopment Project.

         15                 I am Claire Shulman, President of the

         16  Flushing Village Point Corona Local Development

         17  Corporation, which incidentally is substantially

         18  funded by the City of New York.

         19                 And I am delighted to update you on

         20  what has -- what I have been seeing and hearing

         21  since the last public hearing was held on this

         22  matter last spring.

         23                 What I can tell you right off is that

         24  there is a broad-based support in Northern Queens to

         25  redevelop Willets Point. In each community that we
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          2  have been, I have heard the same thing, that the

          3  time is now.

          4                 Over the summer and through the fall,

          5  myself and members of the LDC have been meeting with

          6  local Community Boards, No. 3, 4 and 7, the Board in

          7  which Willets Point is situated, and many civic and

          8  community groups, environmental organizations and

          9  community newspapers and their editorial boards to

         10  brief them on this project, as well as to hear their

         11  important views as we attempt to go forward in the

         12  best possible way, with the redevelopment of Willets

         13  Point.

         14                 With this discussion, three main

         15  areas of concern have emerged: the environment,

         16  housing and economic development.

         17                 No matter who I have talked to

         18  regarding Willets Point, they all agree on one

         19  thing, the need to clean up Willets Point and the

         20  Flushing River and Bay. None of this can happen

         21  without first cleaning up Willets Point. Without a

         22  total redevelopment of the lands at Willets Point,

         23  including a complete clean up of the soil beneath

         24  Willets Point, all of our efforts at cleaning up the

         25  surrounding waterways will come to naught.
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          2                 Anyone who has ever driven by

          3  Flushing Bay in the summer knows what I am talking

          4  about. This condition has existed for decades, and

          5  has got to end. And moreover, once this is

          6  accomplished, the opportunities for the public, in

          7  terms of aquatic recreation, will be nearly

          8  unlimited.

          9                 Throughout the nation and in our own

         10  communities, bodies of water that have been given up

         11  for dead are now thriving, supporting recreation and

         12  all sorts of marine life.

         13                 Further, on the environment, though,

         14  the City has pledged to make this a green

         15  development. This will be an enormous accomplishment

         16  and set a standard for others to follow throughout

         17  the City.

         18                 The need for housing, especially

         19  affordable housing, is one we hear throughout the

         20  community surrounding Willets Point. The growth of

         21  our City has led to shortages of housing, but most

         22  critically affordable housing.

         23                 As it stands, the 500 units of

         24  housing proposed for Willets Point will, subject to

         25  negotiation, contain a healthy percentage of units
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          2  which will be affordable.

          3                 The need for these units is

          4  especially acute in both the bustling communities of

          5  Flushing and Corona.

          6                 Finally, this is about economic

          7  development. It is about 20,000 construction jobs

          8  that exist over the life of this project, and more

          9  than 6,000 permanent jobs that will be created once

         10  the build-out is finished.

         11                 We are also talking about adding

         12  desperately needed convention space for Queens, as

         13  well as a large hotel.

         14                 Now is the time. Earlier you heard

         15  from EDC President Robert Lieber. He detailed the

         16  efforts the City is making to help retrain and

         17  reemploy displaced workers, as well as provide every

         18  aid possible to the businesses currently situated in

         19  Willets Point.

         20                 In my many years of government

         21  experience, this is easily the most impressive

         22  effort the City of New York has put forward to

         23  develop Willets Point.

         24                 I am convinced that EDC stands ready

         25  to do everything possible to help those directly
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          2  affected by the redevelopment, and I respectfully

          3  urge the Council to green light this proposal when

          4  it comes before you in the ULURP process.

          5                 I thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you, Madam

          7  President.

          8                 Wellington.

          9                 MR. CHEN: Thank you, Madam Chairman.

         10  I'd like to take this opportunity to say that as

         11  someone who has lived in this area for close to four

         12  decades in the Borough of Queens and directly across

         13  the river many, many years, Claire knows me as a kid

         14  when I arrived, and now that I have a lot of gray

         15  hairs.

         16                 I think what I would like to bring

         17  today is a sharing of my personal view. As most of

         18  you know, I'm a son of a ship captain that went down

         19  with a ship, and so I have been to a lot of cities

         20  and a lot of places, and I think all of us agree in

         21  agreement here, this is truly a historical moment.

         22  This is unique in the City of its history, because

         23  there is no place like this on earth, very few.

         24                 And the reason I say that is because

         25  I'm fascinated by the history and the place, and

                                                            139

          1  COMMITTEES ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND LAND USE

          2  very few places on earth, 5,000 years from now, they

          3  will be digging and they will be wondering what kind

          4  of civilization this is. And this is a historical

          5  fact. We have two-time capsules to be unveiled in

          6  the Year 6039 and 6064. They will be wondering what

          7  kind of civilization we are.

          8                 This is a reflection of us today. And

          9  what fascinated me of this place, and I've done many

         10  studies with the Olmsted Center in Flushing Meadow,

         11  Corona Park, is how a place can be transformed. And

         12  the reason I say that is because when I got to

         13  Flushing, and you can dig through the archives of

         14  the 1970 Flushing Tribune, the gentleman that wrote

         15  an article about he, as a kid, go swimming in the

         16  Flushing River and go barefoot in a canoe rowboat

         17  with playing a game of dare and go crabbing. And he

         18  will bring back the crabs to share with his mother

         19  for crab salad.

         20                 So, in a little span of where I

         21  arrive in '70, and I look back on that historical

         22  photograph on the Flushing Town Hall of the Flushing

         23  River, ladies in white gowns and caps, and gloves,

         24  and they were in a canoe race on Flushing River. And

         25  you look and just say what a historical moment. To
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          2  the 1920s, look back, and I encourage all the

          3  Council members to look at this area photographed,

          4  it was a resort. The Archile Key Theater (phonetic),

          5  in 1920s, a grand hotel. The beach fronts that Helen

          6  Marshall will attest to, all the houses have

          7  basement doors because it leads out to our beaches.

          8  We have the amusements, it was a flat.

          9                 So, from that we, unfortunately,

         10  polluted the environment. We created this so-called

         11  "cesspool," we created a "valley of ashes," that F.

         12  Scott Fitzgerald so eloquently described. And in the

         13  1930s they tried to transform it. And they did that

         14  partially successfully. Rolled some of the ashes

         15  into meadows and created the 1939 Worlds Fair. They

         16  celebrated, unfortunately the war broke out.

         17                 In 1946, UN broke -- it was first

         18  internationally renown, a general assembly, the

         19  State of Israel was created there.

         20                 So, when I say this is a historical

         21  area, it is, because Deutsche Bank, when they did

         22  the workshop a few years ago with the two Borough

         23  Presidents, the Germans, who had never been in the

         24  City, hit the ground running and gave us a tour. It

         25  was hilarious.
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          2                 It was astounding to see the people

          3  from across the other part of the world know this

          4  place so well and give us a tour. And so if you can

          5  see back, and I think back, and I think the man said

          6  the same thing, which is that since 1960s, there has

          7  been one attempt after another trying to say that we

          8  want to improve it. And I am hoping that we are

          9  sharing today a historical moment that we are moving

         10  forward, and I think the common ground is here, that

         11  we need to improve this condition, in whatever way

         12  it is. And I hope that it is fair and equitable, and

         13  during the interim, but this must be a shining

         14  moment that we can turn this moment around and make

         15  it a historical remembering location that hearing

         16  this thing, I do not want people in years to come --

         17  because I come from a civilization that has 7,000

         18  years of written history, and Claire Shulman's

         19  ethnic background has a history of 5,000 years, so

         20  I'm not pessimistic that 5,000 years from now they

         21  will be digging here.

         22                 And, so, it's a reflection, and as

         23  you can see, society evolves, and very few places

         24  rolls backwards, from a transformation that used to

         25  be very positive to go back to ashes.
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          2                 I think that this is where the

          3  Council plays such an important role, and I hope

          4  that we can jointly celebrate this thing and let my

          5  grandchildren have a place to enjoy.

          6                 And I truly hope that you grasp this

          7  moment, because for both sides, this is an

          8  opportunity to share, because you know the cost is

          9  enormous. You know, rather than a hodge-podge, to do

         10  sewage treatment plant, you're basically talking

         11  about the size of a City here, and so I encourage

         12  you, I implore you to engage in dialogues to make it

         13  a better legacy for this thing, because on the other

         14  side, the promenades are there. You from walk from

         15  LaGuardia Airport to the thing.

         16                 And this is the last point about

         17  Flushing. We are thumb and teeth with you. When you

         18  have a bleeding gum on the other side of the river,

         19  and the City has waterfront requirements that talks

         20  about 40 foot wide promenades, waterfront

         21  restaurants that are 30 foot below sea level, and

         22  all we can see is the site of the river, we got to

         23  make a stand.

         24                 We have to decide one way or the

         25  other if there's indeed a reflection of our
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          2  industrial of our industrial heavily depending on

          3  oil use, then let's do it that way. Don't have a

          4  double-standard on one side of the river. The aging

          5  (sic) side is requiring to have 40-foot wide

          6  promenade, expensive things that leads nowhere. So,

          7  it's not a win/win for us.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Wellington.

          9                 MR. CHEN: So I encourage you to have

         10  a win/win situation created. Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: You're a mind

         12  reader. I appreciate your testimony, and Madam

         13  President, we appreciate yours.

         14                 Is there any questions? No?

         15                 Thank you very much for your time

         16  today.

         17                 MS. SHULMAN: Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Would you like to

         19  --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: What I'd like to

         21  do is --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Can you just tell

         23  me if you're in the room as I call your names?

         24                 Stanley Mark, Tom McCaan, Ruben Pina,

         25  Peter Cuo, Carol VanGuilder, Adam Friedman, Robert
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          2  Vialla.

          3                 Robert is here? Okay, thank you. Hold

          4  on one second.

          5                 Jackie Paterno. Yes. Okay, and JJT

          6  Trucking? Okay, thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: I also see here,

          8  are there members from ACORN here? Raise your hand,

          9  please.

         10                 Okay. Will you represent, we'll call

         11  you up and you'll represent ACORN and ACORN's

         12  position.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Do you want to call

         14  these folks up? Do it how ever you want to do it.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Yes. Okay, state

         16  your name. Okay, if you're going to represent ACORN,

         17  will you come forward, please?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: And the two people

         19  from the list I called, that was the list of folks

         20  that signed up last time to testify. They weren't

         21  able. You will be going soon. Next.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: You're going to

         23  represent ACORN?

         24                 MR. OLAYA: Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay. Have a seat,
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          2  please.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: We're going to ask

          4  people to try to keep their testimony down to three

          5  minutes. The fact is that all of the facts now are

          6  pretty much on the table. It's people's opinions now

          7  that we're very interested in hearing and any other

          8  details that you might bring to the table, as far as

          9  the project goes. So, we appreciate it very much.

         10  Thank you.

         11                 MR. OLAYA: Yes. My name is Arturo

         12  Olaya. I'm a person that belongs to ACORN

         13  organization, and I am a small business owner in

         14  Willets Point.

         15                 I'm working in Willets Point for 15

         16  years, and I live around the area, and I see all the

         17  process in 15 years that happen in the area of

         18  Queens, that this Willets Point area benefits all

         19  the area of Queens because ten years ago so many

         20  junk cars was around the highways, on the streets,

         21  and what we do we recycle the area. We recycle many

         22  automobiles a year, and we represent a thirst (sic)

         23  for the poor people around that can get used parts

         24  and rebuild their cars.

         25                 We can see how the people, poor
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          2  people come and see a solution when they find

          3  affordable prices right there, and they don't have

          4  to go to the dealers, they charge ten times what we

          5  do.

          6                 We are a recycle area. We have a

          7  garbage area to recycle in glass, plastics, and we

          8  recycle more than half a million cars that come into

          9  Willets Point every year, and we are ready there to

         10  work for them.

         11                 One thing is that we don't trust

         12  about they're going to negotiate with a small

         13  business, because we all were being attacked there,

         14  by tickets, old kind of tickets, and we think the

         15  negotiation is not going to give any benefits to us.

         16                 We would like to grow up right there

         17  and keep working and keep feeding our families, like

         18  you can say like you saw the video, Willets Point

         19  don't have a tax all the time and is stopped the

         20  development, we can grow up by ourself.

         21                 Then we appreciate if you take care

         22  of the park that is going to cost the community

         23  around, like Corona, East Elmhurst, you can see by

         24  the time these projects start, the house is around

         25  costing two, three times the price, and it's being

                                                            147

          1  COMMITTEES ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND LAND USE

          2  bind by some company that they have money in the

          3  people who live around, they are not going to have

          4  services to buy houses at the prices and have

          5  American dream.

          6                 When Willets Point disappears, this

          7  is going to happen. These people who live around,

          8  let's say a father have to buy a winch on the car

          9  and they have to spend $700 in the dealer, if they

         10  then pay $100 at Willets Point, what's going to

         11  happen with them to feed their family, to pay the

         12  rent and this is going to cost a lot of psychology

         13  impact on the community.

         14                 I appreciate if you take care of us,

         15  like the small business, like the poor people and

         16  all together and let us grow up like an American.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I appreciate your

         19  testimony very much, and I appreciate your patience

         20  in waiting today. Thank you.

         21                 The names that I called before, the

         22  two individuals that were here, I believe was Robert

         23  Vialla.

         24                 Are you for or against? Are you

         25  ACORN?
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          2                 MR. VIALLA: No.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Jackie Paterno. If

          4  you don't want to speak, it's fine, because I'm just

          5  giving you the opportunity. Last time you waited

          6  through the whole hearing and then weren't able to.

          7  It's up to you. Let's do it.

          8                 Are you against or for?

          9                 MR. VIALLA: Against.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Okay, Jackie

         11  Paterno, for or against?

         12                 MS. PATERNO: Against.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Against? Please

         14  join him.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: One moment.

         16                 In opposition, Francesco Hermida.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Please join us.

         18  We're doing this in panels.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Jackie Paterno.

         20  Okay, Ralph Paterno.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: We're going to ask

         22  that you keep the testimony, please, to three

         23  minutes. Just because you have three minutes, you

         24  don't have to use all of it. But you can. And please

         25  start. We appreciate your patience.
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          2                 MR. VIALLA: Thank you. Hello to the

          3  Council.

          4                 My name is Bob Vialla, and I own

          5  Flushing Auto Salvage in Willets Point and I've been

          6  there for 26 years.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: In Willets Point?

          8                 MR. VIALLA: Yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: If there's any

         10  other businesses at Willets Point, the whole idea of

         11  this film here was to do it for -- are you part of

         12  the industrial --

         13                 MR. VIALLA: I wasn't part of that.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Okay. Thanks.

         15                 MR. VIALLA: Okay?

         16                 My manager, Keith Swanson, who like

         17  me is a father of two, has been with me 23 years. I

         18  come here today asking you to reconsider the

         19  development plans for another area, preferably one

         20  that is not occupied by people and their

         21  livelihoods.

         22                 To lose businesses and drastically

         23  alter lives for the sake of political egos who wish

         24  to construct yet another unneeded project is at the

         25  very least glaringly, if not calculatingly inhumane.
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          2                 Throughout out the years,

          3  Administration after Administration has ignored our

          4  little 66 acres by never providing streets,

          5  sidewalks, sewers, sweeping, snow plowing during bad

          6  winters. You heard it all, all afternoon.

          7                 We are referred to by the press as

          8  the "iron triangle," and they make it seem like we

          9  are just a small cluster of auto repair and chop

         10  shops. I have always personally resented businesses

         11  in our area being made to look like as nothing more

         12  than seedy enterprises that operate under the cover

         13  of night, and from this point on, I want the media

         14  to stop using those references.

         15                 There are, in fact, several large

         16  auto recycling facilities. We're not junkies, like

         17  that lady said before. With multi-million dollar

         18  inventories of used cars and parts, trucks,

         19  machinery, building and property, there are waste

         20  transfer stations, large construction companies,

         21  fabricators of new steel and steel products, and

         22  much more, too much to list. And then there are the

         23  many mom and pop businesses, too many to mention. Is

         24  it all right for our fates to be in your hands for

         25  the sake of this money pit?
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          2                 Allow me this brief scenario. The

          3  project has been built. It's 7:00 p.m., on a

          4  weekday. The new car dealers convention is in town,

          5  and the center is in full swing. Two-thousand of the

          6  5,500 residents are arriving home from work,

          7  shopping, school, et cetera. And the New York Mets

          8  are playing in CitiField at 7:30, and 25,000 fans

          9  are looking for parking.

         10                 The result would be mega gridlock

         11  because you are in a part of Queens surrounded by

         12  water on two sides, Flushing Meadow Park on another,

         13  and CitiField Stadium and its parking lot on the

         14  last side.

         15                 All of this on our little 66 acres.

         16  Ridiculous. You get it? It's another ill-conceived

         17  plan that has not been thought completely through.

         18                 Lastly, if stubborn heads prevail and

         19  we must leave, treat us respectfully as you would,

         20  pay us, and pay us well, and this fight is on.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 MR. PATERNO: Hi. How are you? My name

         23  is Ralph Paterno, and my family has owned property

         24  and run our business in Willets Point since 1963.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Before you start,
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          2  let me just ask, are all you all part of the same?

          3  Okay. Okay, thank you.

          4                 Okay.

          5                 MR. PATERNO: All right. My name is

          6  Ralph Paterno and my family has owned property in

          7  Willets Point since 1963. Next year is going to be

          8  our 45th anniversary, and I just want to go on

          9  record and say, my land is not for sale. I look out

         10  there, to all familiar faces from Willets Point, I

         11  might not know everyone's name, I know their faces,

         12  my father knew their father in some cases, and even

         13  their grandfathers.

         14                 Willets Point is a very unique

         15  business district. The small and large businesses

         16  alongside long-term owners make a diverse and close

         17  community.

         18                 It was my father's dream, my joining

         19  his business when I graduated college. It was also

         20  his nightmare that I would one day have to deal with

         21  the eminent domain threat the City makes every

         22  decade.

         23                 Unfortunately, I have to fight this

         24  alone, because my father has passed. There are a few

         25  untruths the EDC has said in the past that I'd like
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          2  to clear up. My workers are not minimum-wage

          3  employees, they are skilled workers and have been

          4  with me for years.

          5                 Most of these workers worked for my

          6  father and all of them are like family. We work

          7  together, celebrate life accomplishments together,

          8  and I personally know their families.

          9                 The Willets Point redevelopment does

         10  not only threaten 225 businesses and 1,800 workers.

         11  These 1,800 workers have families, multiply 1,800 by

         12  their families. That's the number we need to

         13  consider.

         14                 The effect of this redevelopment is

         15  catastrophic. I want to tell my workers something

         16  about what is going on, but the EDC has not been in

         17  touch with me with any information. They have not

         18  afforded me that respect.

         19                 The EDC portrays all the other

         20  business owners as junk shops. That's simply not

         21  true. I am a college graduate, a second generation

         22  contractor and a business owner. It has always been

         23  my feeling if the City invests in the current

         24  Willets Point infrastructure, for the current

         25  taxpaying residents, not new developers, I can
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          2  almost guarantee the area will revitalize itself.

          3                 The City's neglect of the area while

          4  taking our tax dollars is a direct cause of the area

          5  -- of the way the area is today. As I said, my

          6  father's dream was my joining his business. My dream

          7  is to pass this business on, this land, to the next

          8  generation. And with the City's support, this could

          9  happen.

         10                 I have a sign on my building that

         11  reads, "America, the possible dream." My dad put

         12  this up many years ago. My nightmare is my children

         13  will not get to see the sign, because the building,

         14  the land will be gone. And in its place, a

         15  Starbucks, a convention center, will sit on stolen

         16  land that was once their grandfather's dream.

         17                 Thank you very much.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Thank you.

         19                 I have three individuals I'm going to

         20  call now, if they're here.

         21                 MR. PATERNO: One more.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Oh, forgive me.

         23  I'm sorry.

         24                 MR. HERMIDA: Good evening. My name is

         25  Francisco Hermida. I am the manager of one of the
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          2  junkyards, like they claim, Roosevelt Auto Wrecking.

          3  And also I am a consultant for several other

          4  companies in the area. I am a representative, I am

          5  here as a representative for all these companies and

          6  their employees. At the last meeting at City Hall,

          7  the City Council had stated that the City knows that

          8  the neglect of the buildings of the area, not given

          9  their basic services, they pay and have paid for all

         10  these past years on taxes.

         11                 The current Borough President Helen

         12  Marshall has stated on several occasions, I know

         13  that there are good, solid stakeholders at Willets

         14  Point, but we cannot afford to have these kind of

         15  places in Queens anymore.

         16                 She also has stated it is no worth

         17  for the City to invest any money at this time on

         18  this area. What is she trying to say? That the tax

         19  dollars that these people are paying are not good

         20  enough for the City? Or maybe that the area will be

         21  an inconvenience for a very lucrative real estate

         22  deal.

         23                 Ex-Borough President and current

         24  Board member of the Flushing Development Council,

         25  Ms. Claire Shulman, has stated to the press and to
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          2  the land-owners of Willets Point that it is not

          3  worth for her to even think about committing to

          4  spending any money on this place.

          5                 We now know that she is a private

          6  interest on not making this place as good as any

          7  other New York City neighborhood. This will be an

          8  obstacle for her deal.

          9                 Now, whomever will be the new

         10  developer, it is important for the City to supply

         11  them with services that were denied to the current

         12  residents for years. I would take this fact into

         13  consideration under the law. If the City is going to

         14  take this land, businesses and jobs, what kind of

         15  public use or public benefit will the residents of

         16  the City of New York gain?

         17                 What law gives the right to make

         18  decisions on land or property that does not belong

         19  to them?

         20                 We have heard over the last years,

         21  whom ever gets to develop this land will get a big

         22  tax break from the City of New York, also they are

         23  talking about providing affordable housing for

         24  low-income families. Now, how is some developer who

         25  is going to build a luxury apartment building going
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          2  to consider selling or renting to someone who might

          3  not even be able to pay for maintenance?

          4                 This blight of the area has been a

          5  cause by the City, not by the land owners. So, what

          6  gives the EDC the right even think about eminent

          7  domain or economic redevelopment?

          8                 The EDC has provided a list of

          9  relocation properties to only a few of the

         10  businesses, the so-called ten big businesses. The

         11  only problem is that all of this property is not for

         12  rent, not for sale. Who is even going to consider

         13  selling their property and then go to another that

         14  you will be paying rent?

         15                 What about the other 240 businesses

         16  of the area? What's going to happen with them?

         17                 I have been on the phone several

         18  times with the EDC about the business relocation

         19  program and the employees, threatening relocation.

         20  They could not answer any questions. The only thing

         21  that I was told was promises of something may be

         22  happening in the near future.

         23                 They do not have anyone to provide

         24  training. They do not know how it will work. They do

         25  not know if anyone attends this training, if there
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          2  will be incurred an income loss, if they should be

          3  able to do this, and at the same time provide the

          4  families with the capital.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Excuse me. We're

          6  running on a time and we have to vacate the room.

          7                 MR. HERMIDA: Okay. No problem.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay? No, no, no.

          9  We understand the flavor of what you said.

         10                 MR. HERMIDA: Yes, I understand the

         11  flavor also.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: And what it means.

         13  And, you know, we've completed everyone. Tom Elson.

         14  James Heyliger. Tom Finklepearl.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I'm going to ask

         16  that you can certainly come up, if it repeats the

         17  information that someone already said, if you could

         18  basically say your in opposition or you're for it,

         19  so that we can try to speed it along.

         20                 I'd like to acknowledge that Borough

         21  President Marshall stayed for the whole hearing, so

         22  we love that. And I also would like to acknowledge

         23  Billy Thompson. We have basically kept him from the

         24  room for the last hour, and so him and his staff are

         25  anxious to come in, which I totally understand, but
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          2  he deserves a lot of credit for allowing this

          3  hearing to go forward and we appreciate what Billy,

          4  what the Comptroller has done here today on behalf

          5  of everyone that wanted to testify. So, thank you.

          6                 You are our last panel, I believe.

          7                 MR. FINKELPEARL: Hi. I'm Tom

          8  Finkelpearl. I'm the Director of the Queens Museum

          9  of Art, which is in Flushing Meadows Corona Park.

         10  I'm glad to see such leadership of Queens also being

         11  so patient.

         12                 This is a very complicated issue, and

         13  I just wanted to say one thing, I'll keep it very

         14  short.

         15                 Over the last couple of years, along

         16  with the Museum of the City of New York and Columbia

         17  University, we've been sort of studying the history

         18  of big projects in New York City through the lens of

         19  Robert Moses, and what he did. And he did a lot of

         20  great stuff, and he did a lot of terrible stuff. And

         21  one of the things that came out of our study, and

         22  this was quite a bit of debate about this in New

         23  York City last year, is that you do need big

         24  projects, and I'm here to speak on behalf of this

         25  project, but the thing that was the most common in
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          2  Moses's projects, was that the little guy was the

          3  one who lost. And the people didn't get relocated in

          4  the long run in most of Moses's projects, despite

          5  what he promised, and people didn't get retrained.

          6  And, so, I just wanted to say, I'm for this project,

          7  I think it will be good for the park, but I also say

          8  that the history of New York shows that promises

          9  haven't been kept to the little guy in these kind of

         10  situations, and we're in Corona, a lot of the folks

         11  that work in the so-called "Iron Triangle," live in

         12  Corona, those are good jobs for good hard-working

         13  people, and that's the thing that makes me so

         14  worried about my support, despite the fact that I'm

         15  here to support this.

         16                 That's it.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you. And we

         19  love the Queens Museum of Art.

         20                 MR. FINKELPEARL: Thank you very much.

         21                 MR. ELSON: Good afternoon. My name is

         22  Tom Elson. I am from Environmental Defense, the only

         23  environmental group I've heard speak today.

         24                 I am actually testifying on behalf of

         25  Andy Darrell, New York Regional Director and
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          2  Director of the Living Cities Program. He apologizes

          3  he is unable to be here today.

          4                 Willets Point is the site of great

          5  environmental degradation and neglect. Environmental

          6  defense applauds the City for establishing an urban

          7  renewal plan with the primary stated goal of

          8  improving environmental conditions.

          9                 We are impressed with the plan's high

         10  level of standards and guidelines for mitigating

         11  environmental health risks, and we are very pleased

         12  that the clean-up will directly benefit the Flushing

         13  River and Flushing Bay further restoring New York's

         14  waterways.

         15                 Additionally, we support the City's

         16  further commitment to promote green building and

         17  sustainable design practices in the plan's

         18  implementation.

         19                 This plan represents an opportunity

         20  to develop an urban, sustainable community from the

         21  ground up. It is appropriate that the plan

         22  emphasizes open space and pedestrian friendliness.

         23                 We do, however, recognize that there

         24  are many businesses currently located in Willets

         25  Point, many of which have been there for many years.
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          2                 We urge the City to work closely with

          3  these businesses and their employees to minimize any

          4  detrimental affects.

          5                 Willets Point has been the subject of

          6  many ideas and plans in the past, and we hope that

          7  the time has come to take action that will

          8  ultimately lead to a cleaner and healthier New York

          9  City.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Thank you very

         12  much.

         13                 Is there anyone that didn't testify

         14  that has written testimony? Okay.

         15                 We have one more gentleman from

         16  Community Board 7, Gene Kelty.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I apologize for the

         18  mix-up. Apparently he had handed in his notice and

         19  it got -- I don't know how we just got it, but I do

         20  apologize for that.

         21                 But Gene is the Chair of the

         22  Community Board where this project sits, so I think

         23  it's an important testimony, and I know that he will

         24  keep it as brief as he possibly can. And Gene, I

         25  apologize. Thank you.
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          2                 MR. KELTY: I'll speed right through

          3  it.

          4                 And I appreciate it. It's only

          5  because people asked me to testify, and that's the

          6  reason why I'd down here. I didn't come to the first

          7  one.

          8                 Good afternoon, ladies and gentlemen

          9  of the City Council. I'm Gene Kelty. I'm Chairperson

         10  of Board 7 in Queens. I've been asked to come before

         11  the Council to discuss the Board's concerns

         12  regarding the future development of the Willets

         13  Point area.

         14                 I'd like to go on record and state

         15  the community board would like to see some type of

         16  improvements for the Willets Point area. Many years

         17  ago the Board was approached by several businessmen

         18  from the Willets Point area requesting some

         19  attention to their area. I believe it was Mr. Ben

         20  Feinstein who approached the Board with this

         21  request. Mr. Feinstein was advised of the following:

         22                 Every year Community Board 7 puts

         23  together a budget request for capital and expense

         24  budgets. Budgets for the community boards are like a

         25  history date line. Once an item is put into our

                                                            164

          1  COMMITTEES ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND LAND USE

          2  budget request, it gets tracked for many, many

          3  years.

          4                 Once an item is put on the line, you

          5  don't touch it, you don't move it, unless an

          6  affirmative answer is given from the agency stating

          7  that they're willing to fund it.

          8                 Once that happens, it becomes a

          9  waiting game. This year the agency puts more money

         10  in the request, the next year they freeze the

         11  budget, and then next year it gets pushed out into

         12  the out years, and then like a fish on the line we

         13  have to reel it back into the inner-years.

         14                 This is an accomplishment with the

         15  working relationship between the community boards

         16  and various elected officials. The Borough

         17  Presidents, Councilman, City, State, Assembly People

         18  and of course, our federal representatives.

         19                 In the budget process, it is often

         20  said that a City agency, when it reviews a community

         21  board's budget request, generally looks at the

         22  Board's ten top priorities. If you don't make the

         23  cut in the first ten, it goes on a long, long time

         24  before an item comes on the radar screen at the

         25  agency.
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          2                 I say this to impress you, members of

          3  the Council, how important the ten top items are to

          4  the Community Board. It is a big accomplishment to

          5  get the items done, especially in a timely fashion.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I would attest to

          7  that. As the former Director of Community Boards for

          8  Queens. And I appreciate you trying to read really

          9  fast, but I don't want you to get sick or anything,

         10  so just read, you know, at a normal level. I

         11  appreciate it.

         12                 MR. KELTY: You asked me how does the

         13  Board feel about the development of the Willets

         14  Point area and I respond to you by stating that when

         15  the Board was approached by these businessmen in

         16  Willets Point area, the Board moved one of it's

         17  precious ten items to a higher number and we made a

         18  spot for Willets Point Project.

         19                 Members of the Council, that was back

         20  in 1990. This Board has been waiting for 17 years

         21  for some action to be taken in the area.

         22                 In the course of 17 years, every now

         23  and then some attention would pop up on the site,

         24  but there was never hard drive to keep this moving.

         25  Yet, Community Board 7, kept the item in the ten top
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          2  priorities.

          3                 Seventeen years have passed and we

          4  hear the City is going to move and fix up the area.

          5  Then we hear that it is going to turn into a

          6  Meadowlands for sports. Then recently the City of

          7  New York put out an RFP out for a design consultant

          8  study. The study here is comprised of three phases,

          9  Downtown, Flushing, the municipal parking lot, the

         10  waterfront area by Flushing Creek and then finally

         11  the Willets Point area.

         12                 The company that was awarded design

         13  consultant studies was the Cooper Carry,

         14  Incorporated, and that's the parcel that's attached

         15  to your testimony.

         16                 They did outreach to the community

         17  and involved what people would like to see in the

         18  area, what people would not like to see, and the

         19  general make-up of what is there currently. Out of

         20  this came a request for ideas on what would go to

         21  this location. Some fantastic renderings came

         22  forward, some futeristic and some came down to

         23  earth. As stated in Cooper Carry's brochure: The

         24  Vision - An Infusion of Open Space And Waterfront

         25  Development That Attracts Residents and Visitors to
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          2  Flushing and Serves as a Connection to Activities on

          3  Willets Point.

          4                 Throughout the whole time, there were

          5  two very important components that keep rearing its

          6  head. One, the soil condition. It is believed by

          7  myself and other Board members that the soil

          8  contamination is far worse than what it is being

          9  portrayed. And I am not thinking that we are going

         10  down 100 feet where we will hit clean material. I'm

         11  thinking that you are going down to China to hit

         12  clean material. And, yes, I know there is a high

         13  water table, but members of the Council, I am 53

         14  years of age, and the abuse of the land over there

         15  has been going on that long.

         16                 Second, the property owners. This is

         17  their property and if the City wants it, then they

         18  must deal fairly with them. Hanging over them the

         19  threat of condemnation is not an acceptable answer.

         20                 These hard-working, legitimate

         21  businesses need assurance what their future will

         22  look like. Relocation is a nice word, but it comes

         23  with many strings attached.

         24                 Remember when you were painting a

         25  room in your house, you had to relocate your
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          2  furniture to paint. How difficult was that? Now take

          3  that on a larger scale.

          4                 Community Board 7 is charged with

          5  providing a recommendation to the City on the area.

          6  Whether it is for zoning or land disputation or

          7  whatever. As I had stated before, we are looking

          8  forward to something happening in the area, but we

          9  must be kept in the loop throughout the process. We

         10  have already asked City Planning to make this a

         11  large scale development, as well I'm sure that some

         12  type of special district must be included.

         13                 There are still many unanswered

         14  questions as to what should go there, what is

         15  appropriate and what is not. Fifty-five hundred

         16  housing units does not sit well with the Community

         17  Board, but as with all projects this Board has

         18  worked on, we hope to work this out in Committee

         19  when it gets there.

         20                 I thank you for the ability to

         21  comment and allowing me to speak tonight.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Gene, two members

         23  want to ask you really quick questions.

         24                 MR. KELTY: Okay.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I'm going to really

                                                            169

          1  COMMITTEES ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND LAND USE

          2  implore them. The Comptroller has been more than

          3  patient with us.

          4                 MR. KELTY: Right.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: So, as brief as you

          6  possibly can.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: All right.

          8  Thank you, Madam Chair. And you've been very

          9  patient, Gene, and I really have to congrat -- you

         10  know, thank you for being here.

         11                 My question can be answered yes or

         12  no.

         13                 MR. KELTY: Okay.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: All right?

         15  That's now brief it can be.

         16                 MR. KELTY: Okay.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Are you in

         18  favor of the ULURP process starting without what

         19  normally happens with ULURP, which is coming before

         20  the community board with far more detail to exactly

         21  what the project is?

         22                 MR. KELTY: No, I'm not in favor of

         23  that. I want --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: That's all you

         25  need to say. Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Very brief.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Absolutely.

          4                 Gene, I just wanted to know, in your

          5  opinion, has EDC met with you enough about this

          6  project?

          7                 I mean, has there been real

          8  communication or not?

          9                 MR. KELTY: There has been

         10  communication, yes, Councilman. It's just that what

         11  is going there has always been the maxiumum plan

         12  build-out, never their various plans. So, yes,

         13  they've met with me. I've been sitting on the Task

         14  Force with the Borough President's Office, but it's

         15  always the same plan with a maximum, maximum

         16  build-out.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you, Gene.

         18  Again, sorry.

         19                 MR. KELTY: No, I appreciate --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I wish I had seen

         21  you earlier, because I would have liked everyone to

         22  have heard your testimony, as well.

         23                 MR. KELTY: Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Well, we have had

         25  a very productive hearing. Madam Chair, it has been
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          2  a pleasure co-chairing the meeting with you.

          3                 I would also like to call to your

          4  attention, and read for the record, that we should

          5  all acquaint ourselves with the history of the City

          6  Council Land Use authority, Section 197-C. It lays

          7  out the Uniform Land Use Review Procedure, and

          8  Section 197-D, Council Review, gives City Council

          9  sole jurisdiction in deciding on actions contained

         10  in 197-C.

         11                 With that being said, the meeting is

         12  closed.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Excellent.

         14                 (Hearing concluded at 5:20 p.m.)
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